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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HENRY BOOT PLC

OPINION
In our opinion:

• Henry Boot PLC’s group financial statements and parent company 
financial statements (the “financial statements”) give a true and fair 
view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs 
as at 31 December 2021 and of the group’s profit for the year 
then ended;

• the group financial statements have been properly prepared in 
accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards; 

• the parent company financial statements have been properly 
prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting 
standards as applied in accordance with section 408 of the 
Companies Act 2006; and

• the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the 
requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements of Henry Boot PLC (the 
‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the ‘group’) for the year ended 
31 December 2021 which comprise:

Group Parent Company
Group statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2021

Parent Company statement  
of financial position as at  
31 December 2021

Consolidated statement of 
comprehensive income for the year 
then ended

Parent Company statement of 
changes in equity for the year then 
ended

 Group statement of changes in 
equity for the year then ended

Parent Company statement of cash 
flows for the year then ended 

 Group statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended

Related notes 1 to 37 to the financial 
statements including a summary of 
significant accounting policies

Related notes 1 to 37 to the 
financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting 
policies

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their 
preparation is applicable law and UK adopted international accounting 
standards and as regards the parent company financial statements, as 
applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies Act 2006.

BASIS FOR OPINION 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on 
Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under 
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for 
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. 

INDEPENDENCE
We are independent of the group and parent in accordance with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard as applied 
to listed public interest entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard were 
not provided to the group or the parent company and we remain 
independent of the group and the parent company in conducting  
the audit. 

CONCLUSIONS RELATING TO GOING CONCERN
In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the 
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the 
preparation of the financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation 
of the directors’ assessment of the group and parent company’s ability 
to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting included: 

• confirming our understanding of management’s going concern 
assessment process, through our walkthrough of the Group’s 
financial close process and also engaging with management early 
to ensure all key factors we identified were considered in their 
assessment.

• obtaining management’s going concern assessment, including 
the cash forecast and forecast covenant calculation which covers 
the period to 31 December 2023. The Group has modelled a 
base scenario and then a severe but plausible downside scenario 
in their cash forecasts and covenant calculations in order to 
incorporate unexpected changes to the forecasted liquidity of the 
Group. This downside scenario models a significant curtailment of 
activity and is modelled on a recessionary environment similar to 
that experienced during the global financial crisis in 2008.

• testing the factors and assumptions included in each modelled 
scenario for the cash forecast and covenant calculation. We also 
considered whether climate change could impact the assessment. 
We also considered the appropriateness of the models used 
to calculate the cash forecasts and covenant calculations to 
determine if they were appropriately sophisticated to be able to 
make an assessment on going concern. 

• considering the mitigating factors included in the cash forecasts 
and covenant calculations that are within control of the Group, 
for example, reducing uncommitted development and acquisition 
expenditure. This included an assessment of the Group’s non-
operating cash outflows. 

• verifying the credit facilities available to the Group, being the 
secured loan facility of £75m.

• performing reverse stress testing in order to identify what factors 
would lead to the Group utilising all liquidity or breaching the 
financial covenant during the going concern period. 

• reviewing the Group’s going concern disclosures included in 
the annual report in order to assess that the disclosures were 
appropriate and in conformity with the reporting standards. 

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any 
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually 
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group and parent 
company’s ability to continue as a going concern to 31 December 2023. 

In relation to the group and parent company’s reporting on how they have 
applied the UK Corporate Governance Code, we have nothing material 
to add or draw attention to in relation to the directors’ statement in the 
financial statements about whether the directors considered it appropriate 
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect 
to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report. 
However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, 
this statement is not a guarantee as to the group’s ability to continue as a 
going concern.
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OVERVIEW OF OUR AUDIT APPROACH
Audit scope • We performed an audit of the complete 

financial information of six components and 
audit procedures on specific balances for a 
further ten components.

• The components where we performed full or 
specific audit procedures accounted for 95% 
of Profit before tax, 99% of Revenue and 96% 
of Total assets.

Key audit 
matters

• Valuation of contract balances and associated 
revenue and profit recognition.

• Valuation of house building inventories and 
profit recognition.

• Valuation of investment properties.
Materiality • Group materiality of £1.8m which represents 

5% of Profit before tax.

AN OVERVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF THE PARENT  
COMPANY AND GROUP AUDITS 
Tailoring the scope
Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our 
Our assessment of audit risk, our evaluation of materiality and our 
allocation of performance materiality determine our audit scope for 
each company within the Group. Taken together, this enables us 
to form an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We 
take into account size, risk profile, the organisation of the group 
and effectiveness of group-wide controls, changes in the business 
environment and other factors such as recent Internal audit results 
when assessing the level of work to be performed at each company.

In assessing the risk of material misstatement to the Group financial 
statements, and to ensure we had adequate quantitative coverage 
of significant accounts in the financial statements, of the 61 reporting 
components of the Group, we selected 16 components, which 
represent the principal business units within the Group.

Of the 16 components selected, we performed an audit of the 
complete financial information of six components (“full scope 
components”) which were selected based on their size or risk 
characteristics. For the remaining ten components (“specific scope 
components”), we performed audit procedures on specific accounts 
within that component that we considered had the potential for the 
greatest impact on the significant accounts in the financial statements 
either because of the size of these accounts or their risk profile. 

The reporting components where we performed audit procedures 
accounted for 95% (2020: 94%) of the Group’s Profit before tax, 99% 
(2020: 97%) of the Group’s Revenue and 96% (2020: 93%) of the 
Group’s Total assets. For the current year, the full scope components 
contributed 71% (2020: 71%) of the Group’s Profit before tax, 94% 
(2020:92%) of the Group’s Revenue and 84% (2020: 85%) of the 
Group’s Total assets. The specific scope components contributed 
24% (2020: 23%) of the Group’s Profit before tax, 5% (2020: 5%) of 
the Group’s Revenue and 12% (2020: 8%) of the Group’s Total assets. 
The audit scope of these components may not have included testing 
of all significant accounts of the component but will have contributed 
to the coverage of significant accounts tested for the Group. 

Of the remaining 45 components that together represent 5% of the 
Group’s Profit before tax, none are individually greater than 3% of the 
Group’s Profit before tax. For these components, we performed other 
procedures, including analytical review and testing of consolidation 
journals and intercompany eliminations to respond to any potential 
risks of material misstatement to the Group financial statements.

The charts below illustrate the coverage obtained from the work 
performed by our audit team.

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Full scope components
71%

5%
Other procedures

Specific scope 
components

24%

REVENUE

Full scope components
94%

1%
Other procedures

Specific scope 
components

5%

TOTAL ASSETS

Full scope components
84%

4%
Other procedures

Specific scope 
components

12%
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HENRY BOOT PLC

CHANGES FROM THE PRIOR YEAR 
The number of specific scope components increased from five in the 
prior year to eleven in the current year due to increased activity in 
subsidiaries and joint ventures. 

All audit work performed for the purposes of the audit was undertaken 
by the Group audit team.

CLIMATE CHANGE 
There has been increasing interest from stakeholders as to how 
climate change will impact Henry Boot PLC. The Group has 
determined that the most significant future impacts from climate 
change on their operations will be from various factors, that are 
explained on page 70 in the required Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures on page 44 in the principal risks and 
uncertainties, which form part of the “Other information,” rather than 
the audited financial statements. Our procedures on these disclosures 
therefore consisted solely of considering whether they are materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the course of the audit or otherwise appear to be materially 
misstated. 

As explained in the Basis of Preparation note governmental and 
societal responses to climate change risks are still developing, and 
are interdependent upon each other, and consequently financial 
statements cannot capture all possible future outcomes as these are 
not yet known. 

Our audit effort in considering climate change was focused on 
ensuring that the effects of material climate risks disclosed on page 70 
have been appropriately considered in asset values, and associated 
disclosures. We also challenged the Directors’ considerations of 
climate change in their assessment of going concern and viability and 
associated disclosures. 

KEY AUDIT MATTERS 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, 
were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of 
the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of 
material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) that we identified. 
These matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the 
overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the audit; and 
directing the efforts of the engagement team. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a 
whole, and in our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Henry Boot PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021146



Risk Our response to the risk 

Key observations 
communicated  
to the Audit Committee 

VALUATION OF CONTRACT BALANCES 
AND ASSOCIATED REVENUE AND PROFIT 
RECOGNITION
Refer to the Audit & Risk Committee Report 
(page 112); Accounting policies (page 158); 
and Note 1, 17 and 22 of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements (page 165, 183 and 
186)

The Group has reported revenues from 
construction and development contracts 
for the year of £78.8m (2020: £123.9m). 
The Group has reported contract assets of 
£7.6m (2020: £13.3m) and contract liabilities 
of £5.0m (2020: £7.4m). 

For construction and development contract 
activity the performance obligation is 
satisfied over time. This means that revenue 
is recognised by measuring the progress 
towards completing the performance 
obligation satisfactorily. This assessment 
requires management to estimate the 
stage of completion of construction and 
development contract activity and assess 
costs to complete. Forecasting is highly 
subjective and is an area that could lead 
to misstatement of revenue, profit and 
related construction and development 
contract balances either through error or 
management bias. 

For construction and development contract activity 
the performance obligation is satisfied over time. 
This means that revenue is recognised by measuring 
the progress towards completing the performance 
obligation satisfactorily. This assessment requires 
management to estimate the stage of completion 
of construction and development contract activity 
and assess costs to complete. Forecasting is 
highly subjective and is an area that could lead 
to misstatement of revenue, profit and related 
construction and development contract balances 
either through error or management bias. 

• We performed walkthroughs to understand the 
key processes and identify key controls; 

• We agreed key contractual terms to customer 
contracts; 

• We agreed total revenue for the contract to the 
signed contract and approved variation orders;

• We held meetings with in-house surveyors to 
understand the status and performance to date 
of the contracts and the basis for the cost to 
complete assumptions made;

• We challenged management’s forecast of costs 
to complete by analysing historical forecasting 
accuracy through reviewing the movement in 
forecast margins to their final actual margins on 
completed contracts;

• We performed sensitivity analysis on costs to 
come to identify any contracts that were sensitive 
to both price increases and delays. 

• We obtained post year end contract valuation 
schedules to identify any favourable or 
unfavourable margin movements and where 
necessary ensured that this post year end 
information was reflected in the year end 
assessments;

• We tested a sample of costs incurred in the 
year to third party supporting evidence and 
validated that the cost had been allocated to the 
appropriate contract;

• We recalculated the percentage completion of the 
project using the costs incurred to date, and the 
corresponding revenue and margin recognised in 
the year;

• We tested the amounts invoiced on contracts to 
underlying payment applications/certificates and 
to cash receipt where paid and assessed any 
contract assets for recoverability; and

• We discussed projects with in-house surveyors 
and the Group legal department to identify any 
claims that may impact on cost to complete.

For a sample of the larger projects that were 
incomplete at the balance sheet date, we also visited 
the site to gain a deeper understanding of the projects 
and to identify contra-indicators of the stage of 
completion

We performed full and specific scope audit 
procedures over this risk area in two locations, which 
covered 100% of the risk amount.

Based on our audit procedures we 
have concluded that the contract 
balances, revenue and profit 
recognised in the year are not 
materially misstated. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HENRY BOOT PLC

Risk Our response to the risk 

Key observations 
communicated  
to the Audit Committee 

VALUATION OF HOUSE BUILDING 
INVENTORIES
Refer to the Audit & Risk Committee Report 
(page 112); Accounting policies (page 161); 
and Note 20 of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements (page 185)

The Group holds house building inventories of 
£58.5m (2020 - £39.2m).

There is a risk that the margin used to 
recognise profit on each development is 
incorrect and that the carrying value of 
Inventory could be subject to impairment 
write downs.

The carrying value of Inventory is determined 
by reference to a number of assumptions 
inherent in the site forecasts, such as costs to 
complete and expected selling price. These 
are used to calculate the expected margin 
on each development and the cost of sale 
recorded when a plot is sold. There is a risk 
that these assumptions may be subject to 
management override or error and that costs 
incurred are not allocated to the appropriate 
developments.

For a sample of sites, we performed the following 
procedures:

• We performed walkthroughs to understand the key 
processes and identify key controls; 

• We held meetings with the commercial director 
to assess the status and performance to date of 
the active sites and the basis for the sales and 
cost to complete assumptions made, including 
understanding the reasons behind any excess 
costs or savings recognised on the site since the 
initial forecast;

• We verified selling price assumptions against recent 
market activity and considered whether recent 
market activity provided any contra-evidence; 

• For completed sites, we compared the estimated 
and actual costs and margin to assess the 
historical accuracy of management’s forecasting 
and to evaluate the appropriateness of the 
forecast margin for incomplete sites at the balance 
sheet date;

• For a sample of sites where revenue was 
recognised in the year, we compared the gross 
margin to industry averages to identify sites with 
inconsistent margins and understood the drivers of 
this to assess reasonableness;

• We selected a sample of costs incurred during the 
year (included as additions to work in progress) and 
agreed them to third party invoices, checking the 
costs had been allocated to the appropriate site 
and were recognised in the correct period;

• For a sample of sales in the year, we checked that 
the proportion of expenditure recognised as a cost 
of sale in the year was in line with the most recent 
forecast margin for the site

• We assessed the completeness of inventory 
provisions by performing sensitivity analysis on 
active sites and post year end sales activity; and

• For a sample of land assets, we considered their 
location within the UK and assessed whether there 
was any impairment risk due to potential flooding.

We performed full and specific scope audit 
procedures over this risk area in one location, which 
covered 100% of the risk amount.

Based on our audit procedures 
we have concluded that the 
investment property balance and 
fair value movement recognised 
in the year are not materially 
misstated.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Henry Boot PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021148



Risk Our response to the risk 

Key observations 
communicated  
to the Audit Committee 

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT 
PROPERTIES
Refer to the Audit & Risk Committee Report 
(page 112); Accounting policies (page 160); 
and Note 14 of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements (page 176 to 180) 

The Group holds Investment property of 
£104.2m (2020 - £82.7m).

There is a risk that the carrying value of 
investment properties is misstated, given 
that the carrying value of these assets 
is based on a number of assumptions 
which contain inherent uncertainties and 
which require management judgement. 
Uncertainties in the valuations include 
yields,market rent, actual rent achieved and 
commercial property values amongst other 
building specific assumptions.

For a sample of investment properties, we performed 
the following procedures:

• We performed walkthroughs to understand the 
key processes and identify key controls; and

• For a sample of investment properties valued 
by an external valuer, we assessed the 
appropriateness of the valuations, with the 
assistance of our EY Valuations specialists. We 
assessed these through reading the external 
valuer reports and testing the underlying data 
used by the external valuer in forming their 
valuation including; validating key assumptions 
around rent, yields and commercial property 
values to supporting third party evidence or 
market activity, holding discussions directly with 
the external valuer to confirm their valuation 
approach, including their consideration of climate 
risk and considering contrary evidence.

We performed full and specific scope audit 
procedures over this risk area in seven locations, 
which covered 100% of the risk amount.

Based on our audit procedures 
we have concluded that the 
investment property balance and 
fair value movement recognised 
in the year are not materially 
misstated.

OUR APPLICATION OF MATERIALITY 
We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the 
audit, in evaluating the effect of identified misstatements on the audit 
and in forming our audit opinion. 

Materiality
The magnitude of an omission or misstatement that, individually or in 
the aggregate, could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of the users of the financial statements. Materiality provides a 
basis for determining the nature and extent of our audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the Group to be £1.8 million (2020: £1.9 
million), which is 5% (2020: 5%) of Profit before tax (2020: normalised 
Profit before tax). We believe that Profit before tax provides us with an 
appropriate basis of materiality and is the most relevant measure for 
stakeholders as it is a focus of both management and investors. In the 
prior year, our materiality was based on the average Profit before tax 
over the previous three years due to the impact of COVID-19. In the 
current year, the impact of COVID-19 was reduced to such a level that 
we determined Profit before tax to be representative of the earnings of 
the Group. 

We determined materiality for the Parent Company to be £2.0 million 
(2020: £1.6 million), which is 2% (2020: 2%) of equity. The increase in 
materiality is due to dividends received by subsidiaries in the year. 

Performance materiality
The application of materiality at the individual account or balance 
level. It is set at an amount to reduce to an appropriately low level 
the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected 
misstatements exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment 
of the Group’s overall control environment, our judgement was 
that performance materiality was 75% (2020: 50%) of our planning 
materiality, namely £1.3m (2020: £0.95m). We have set performance 
materiality at this percentage due to this being a recurring audit 
with a history of few misstatements. We previously set performance 
materiality at 50% as it was the first year of our audit.

Audit work at component locations for the purpose of obtaining 
audit coverage over significant financial statement accounts is 
undertaken based on a percentage of total performance materiality. 
The performance materiality set for each component is based on 
the relative scale and risk of the component to the Group as a whole 
and our assessment of the risk of misstatement at that component. 
In the current year, the range of performance materiality allocated to 
components was £0.26m to £1.3m (2020: £0.19m to £0.95m). 

Reporting threshold
An amount below which identified misstatements are considered as 
being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them 
all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £0.09m (2020: £0.1m), 
which is set at 5% of planning materiality, as well as differences below 
that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative 
grounds. 

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the 
quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of 
other relevant qualitative considerations in forming our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF HENRY BOOT PLC

OTHER INFORMATION 
The other information comprises the information included in the annual 
report set out on pages 1 to 142 other than the financial statements 
and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the 
other information contained within the annual report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this 
report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with 
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of 
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify 
such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, 
we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material 
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on 
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report 
that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

OPINIONS ON OTHER MATTERS PRESCRIBED  
BY THE COMPANIES ACT 2006
In our opinion, the part of the directors’ remuneration report to be 
audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies 
Act 2006.

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

• the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ 
report for the financial year for which the financial statements are 
prepared is consistent with the financial statements and those 
reports have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements;

• the information about internal control and risk management 
systems in relation to financial reporting processes and about 
share capital structures, given in compliance with rules 7.2.5 and 
7.2.6 in the Disclosure Rules and Transparency Rules sourcebook 
made by the Financial Conduct Authority (the FCA Rules), is 
consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in 
accordance with applicable legal requirements; and

• information about the company’s corporate governance statement 
and practices and about its administrative, management and 
supervisory bodies and their committees complies with rules 
7.2.2, 7.2.3 and 7.2.7 of the FCA Rules.

MATTERS ON WHICH WE ARE REQUIRED 
TO REPORT BY EXCEPTION
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the 
parent company and its environment obtained in the course of the 
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in:

• the strategic report or the directors’ report; or

• the information about internal control and risk management 
systems in relation to financial reporting processes and about 
share capital structures, given in compliance with rules 7.2.5 and 
7.2.6 of the FCA Rules

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in 
relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you 
if, in our opinion:

• adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent 
company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been 
received from branches not visited by us; or

• the parent company financial statements and the part of 
the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in 
agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

• certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are 
not made; or

• we have not received all the information and explanations we 
require for our audit

• a Corporate Governance Statement has not been prepared by the 
company

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
We have reviewed the directors’ statement in relation to going 
concern, longer-term viability and that part of the Corporate 
Governance Statement relating to the group and company’s 
compliance with the provisions of the UK Corporate Governance 
Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules.

Based on the work undertaken as part of our audit, we have 
concluded that each of the following elements of the Corporate 
Governance Statement is materially consistent with the financial 
statements or our knowledge obtained during the audit:

• Directors’ statement with regards to the appropriateness of 
adopting the going concern basis of accounting and any material 
uncertainties identified set out on page 48;

• Directors’ explanation as to its assessment of the company’s 
prospects, the period this assessment covers and why the period 
is appropriate set out on page 49;

• Director’s statement on whether it has a reasonable expectation 
that the group will be able to continue in operation and meets its 
liabilities set out on page 49;

• Directors’ statement on fair, balanced and understandable set out 
on page 141;

• Board’s confirmation that it has carried out a robust assessment 
of the emerging and principal risks set out on pages 42 to 48;

• The section of the annual report that describes the review of 
effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems set 
out on pages 109 to 112; and;

• The section describing the work of the audit committee set out on 
pages 108 to 112.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set 
out on page 141, the directors are responsible for the preparation of 
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true 
and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine 
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible 
for assessing the group and parent company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the 
directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or 
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT  
OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users 
taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

Explanation as to what extent the audit was considered 
capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud 
Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance 
with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our 
responsibilities, outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher 
than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intentional 
misrepresentations, or through collusion. The extent to which our 
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is 
detailed below.

However, the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of 
fraud rests with both those charged with governance of the company 
and management. 

• We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory 
frameworks that are applicable to the group and determined 
that the most significant are those that relate to the reporting 
framework (UK adopted international accounting standards 
as applied in accordance with section 408 of the Companies 
Act 2006) , the relevant tax compliance regulations in the UK, 
employment law and building safety regulations.

• We understood how Henry Boot PLC is complying with those 
frameworks by making enquiries of management, Internal Audit, 
those responsible for legal and compliance procedures and the 
Company Secretary. We corroborated our enquiries through 
our review of board minutes and papers provided to the Audit 
Committee. 

• We assessed the susceptibility of the group’s financial statements 
to material misstatement, including how fraud might occur by 
meeting with management from various parts of the business to 
understand where it considered there was a susceptibility to fraud. 
We also considered performance targets and their propensity 
to influence efforts made by management to manage earnings. 
We considered the programmes and controls that the Group has 
established to address risks identified, or that otherwise prevent, 
deter and detect fraud; and how senior management monitors 
those programmes and controls. Where the risk was considered 
to be higher, we performed audit procedures to address each 
identified fraud risk, as set out in the Key Audit Matters section 
above. These procedures included testing manual journals and 
were designed to provide reasonable assurance that the financial 
statements were free from material fraud and error.

• Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures 
to identify non-compliance with such laws and regulations. Our 
procedures involved journal entry testing, with a focus on manual 
consolidation journals, and journals indicating large or unusual 
transactions based on our understanding of the business; 

enquiries of Group management and Internal Audit; and focused 
testing, as referred to in the key audit matters section above. 
In addition, we completed procedures to conclude on the 
compliance of the disclosures in the Annual Report and Accounts 
with the requirements of the relevant accounting standards, UK 
legislation and the UK Corporate Governance Code 2018.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial 
statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at 
https://www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms 
part of our auditor’s report.

OTHER MATTERS WE ARE REQUIRED TO ADDRESS 
• Following the recommendation from the audit committee, we 

were appointed by the company on 20 May 2021 to audit the 
financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2021 and 
subsequent financial periods. 

• The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous 
renewals and reappointments is two years, covering the years 
ending 31 December 2020 to 31 December 2021.

• The audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the 
audit committee.

USE OF OUR REPORT
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in 
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. 
Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the 
company’s members those matters we are required to state to them 
in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent 
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to 
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a 
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have 
formed. 

VICTORIA VENNING 
for and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory Auditor
Manchester

13 April 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Note
2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Revenue 1 230,598 222,411

Cost of sales (175,052) (181,944)

Gross profit 55,546 40,467

Administrative expenses (32,174) (28,791)

Pension expenses 4 (6,039) (4,552)

17,333 7,124

Increase in fair value of investment properties 14 7,972 1,266

Profit/(loss) on sale of investment properties 1,340 (97)

Share of profit of joint ventures and associates 16 8,928 1,756

Profit on disposal of joint ventures and subsidiaries 35 — 7,426

Operating profit 3 35,573 17,475

Finance income 5 724 721

Finance costs 6 (1,155) (1,117)

Profit before tax 35,142 17,079

Tax 7 (4,482) (3,354)

Profit for the year from continuing operations 30,660 13,725

Other comprehensive income/(expense) not being reclassified to  
profit or loss in subsequent years:

Revaluation of Group occupied property 12 — (651)

Deferred tax on property revaluations (282) —

Actuarial gain/(loss) on defined benefit pension scheme 27 23,297 (15,713)

Deferred tax on actuarial (gain)/loss 19 (4,840) 3,089

Total other comprehensive income/(expense) not being reclassified to profit or loss in 
subsequent years 18,175 (13,275)

Total comprehensive income for the year 48,835 450

Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Parent Company 28,160 11,921

Non-controlling interests 2,500 1,804

30,660 13,725

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the Parent Company 46,335 (1,354)

Non-controlling interests 2,500 1,804

48,835 450

Basic earnings per ordinary share for the profit attributable to owners of the Parent 
Company during the year 9 21.2p 9.0p

Diluted earnings per ordinary share for the profit attributable to owners of the Parent 
Company during the year 9 20.9p 8.9p
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

Group Parent Company

Note
2021
£’000

2020 
£’000

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Assets
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 11 3,716 4,318 — —

Property, plant and equipment 12 26,349 23,818 317 182

Right-of-use assets 13 1,581 2,110 76 137

Investment properties 14 104,177 82,723 — —

Investments 15 — — 37,771 38,021

Investment in joint ventures and associates 16 12,165 5,840 — —

Trade and other receivables 18 13,304 7,194 — —

Deferred tax assets 19 3,389 7,342 3,522 7,347

164,681 133,345 41,686 45,687

Current assets
Inventories 20 235,296 200,789 — —

Contract assets 17 7,556 13,328 — —

Trade and other receivables 18 91,359 65,032 204,534 135,640

Current tax receivable 1,828 — 1,551 —

Cash 11,116 42,125 2,691 31,615

347,155 321,274 208,776 167,255

Liabilities

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 72,155 72,727 86,173 93,110

Contract liabilities 21 5,033 7,430 — —

Current tax liabilities — 1,129 — 386

Borrowings 25 52,941 2,941 50,000 1,421

Lease liabilities 13 639 603 41 54

Provisions 26 5,427 4,852 — —

136,195 89,682 136,214 94,971

Net current assets 210,960 231,592 72,562 72,284

Non-current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 1,669 2,346 — —

Borrowings 25 — 9,969 — —

Lease liabilities 13 1,021 1,613 37 86

Retirement benefit obligations 27 12,228 36,445 12,228 36,445

Deferred tax liability 19 4,582 — — —

Provisions 26 855 1,076 — —

20,355 51,449 12,265 36,531

Net assets 355,286 313,488 101,983 81,440

Equity
Share capital 29 13,732 13,718 13,732 13,718

Property revaluation reserve 30 2,060 2,342 — —

Retained earnings 30 328,348 288,514 81,414 61,357

Other reserves 30 6,744 6,404 7,881 7,541

Cost of shares held by ESOP trust 31 (1,044) (1,176) (1,044) (1,176)

Equity attributable to owners  
of the Parent Company 349,840 309,802 101,983 81,440

Non-controlling interests 5,446 3,686 — —

Total equity 355,286 313,488 101,983 81,440

The Parent Company made a profit for the year of £8,938,000 (2020: £552,000).

The Financial Statements on pages 152 to 201 of Henry Boot PLC, registered number 160996, were approved by the Board of Directors and 
authorised for issue on 13 April 2022.

On behalf of the Board

Tim Roberts 
Director

Darren Littlewood 
Director
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Attributable to owners of the Parent Company

Group Note

Share
capital
£’000

Property
revaluation

reserve
£’000

Retained
earnings

£’000

Other
reserves

£’000

Cost of
shares held

by ESOP
 trust

£’000
Total

£’000

Non-
controlling

interests
£’000

Total
equity
£’000

At 1 January 2020 13,717 2,993 293,593 6,390 (1,248) 315,445 3,041 318,486
Profit for the year 30 — — 11,921 — — 11,921 1,804 13,725
Other comprehensive expense — (651) (12,624) — — (13,275) — (13,275)
Total comprehensive income/
(expense) — (651) (703) — — (1,354) 1,804 450
Equity dividends 10 — — (4,664) — — (4,664) (1,159) (5,823)
Proceeds from shares issued 1 — — 14 — 15 — 15
Purchase of treasury shares 31 — — — — (615) (615) — (615)
Share-based payments 30, 31 — — 288 — 687 975 — 975

1 — (4,376) 14 72 (4,289) (1,159) (5,448)
At 31 December 2020 13,718 2,342 288,514 6,404 (1,176) 309,802 3,686 313,488
Profit for the year 30 — — 28,160 — — 28,160 2,500 30,660
Other comprehensive income — (282) 18,457 — — 18,175 — 18,175
Total comprehensive income/
(expense) — (282) 46,617 — — 46,335 2,500 48,835
Equity dividends 10 — — (7,620) — — (7,620) (740) (8,360)
Proceeds from shares issued 14 — — 340 — 354 — 354
Share-based payments 30, 31 — — 837 — 132 969 — 969

14 — (6,783) 340 132 (6,297) (740) (7,037)
At 31 December 2021 13,732 2,060 328,348 6,744 (1,044) 349,840 5,446 355,286

Parent Company Note

Share
capital
£’000

Retained
earnings

£’000

Other
reserves

£’000

Cost of
shares held

by ESOP
 trust

£’000

Total 
equity
£’000

At 1 January 2020 13,717 78,390 7,527 (1,248) 98,386
Profit for the year 8 — 552 — — 552
Other comprehensive expense — (12,624) — — (12,624)
Total comprehensive expense — (12,072) — — (12,072)
Equity dividends 10 — (4,664) — — (4,664)
Proceeds from shares issued 1 — 14 — 15
Purchase of treasury shares 31 — — — (615) (615)
Share-based payments 31 — (297) — 687 390

1 (4,961) 14 72 (4,874)
At 31 December 2020 13,718 61,357 7,541 (1,176) 81,440
Profit for the year 8 — 8,938 — — 8,938
Other comprehensive income — 18,457 — — 18,457
Total comprehensive income — 27,395 — — 27,395
Equity dividends 10 — (7,620) — — (7,620)
Proceeds from shares issued 14 — 340 — 354
Share-based payments 30 — 282 — 132 414

14 (7,338) 340 132 (6,852)
At 31 December 2021 13,732 81,414 7,881 (1,044) 101,983
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Group Parent Company

Note
2021
£’000

2020
£’000

2021
£’000

Restated1

2020
£’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash generated from operations 32 (38,665) 21,136 (9,037) (2,362)

Interest paid (792) (728) (2,272) (2,232)

Tax paid (4,299) (6,597) (2,750) (4,477)

Net cash flows from operating activities (43,756) 13,811 (14,059) (9,071)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of intangible assets 11 (203) (283) — —

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 12 (861) (924) (280) (54)

Capital expenditure on investment property (17,317) (11,962) — —

Purchase of investment in associate (2) — — —
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment (excluding 
equipment held for hire) 301 279 — —

Proceeds on disposal of investment properties 6,651 627 — —

Movement in receivables from joint ventures and associates (12,999) — — —

Advances made to subsidiary undertakings — — (87,409) (22,324)

Repayments received from subsidiary undertakings — — 15,185 11,695

Proceeds on disposal of investment in joint ventures 4,252 2,798 — —

Interest received 129 512 4,544 3,665

Dividends received from joint ventures and subsidiaries 2,155 2,200 14,530 7,897

Net cash flows from investing activities (17,894) (6,753) (53,430) 879

Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from shares issued 354 15 354 15

Purchase of treasury shares 31 — (615) — (615)

Movement in payables from joint ventures and associates (701) — — —

Advances received from subsidiary undertakings — — 5,007 7,912

Repayments made to subsidiary undertakings — — (7,625) (499)

Repayment of borrowings (14,969) (1,942) (5,000) —

Proceeds from new borrowings 55,000 4,153 55,000 —

Principal elements of lease payments (683) (3,024) (130) (67)

Dividends paid – ordinary shares 10 (7,599) (4,643) (7,599) (4,643)

 – non-controlling interests (740) (1,159) — —

– preference shares 10 (21) (21) (21) (21)

Net cash flows from financing activities 30,641 (7,236) 39,986 2,082

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (31,009) (178) (27,503) (6,110)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 42,125 42,303 30,194 36,304

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 11,116 42,125 2,691 30,194

1 See ‘Prior year restatement - parent’ on page 156.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The principal Accounting Policies adopted in the preparation of the Group’s Financial Statements are set out below. These policies have been 
consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The Company is a public limited company, listed on the London Stock Exchange and incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. 
The address of its registered office is Banner Cross Hall, Ecclesall Road South, Sheffield, England, United Kingdom S11 9PD.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE
The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group and the Financial Statements of the Parent Company have been prepared in accordance 
with UK-adopted International Accounting Standards. They have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for financial instruments, 
investment properties and Group occupied land and buildings, which are measured at fair value.

The Directors have taken advantage of the exemption available under Section 408 of the Companies Act and not presented a statement 
of comprehensive income for the Parent Company alone. See note 8.

PRIOR YEAR RESTATEMENT – PARENT
For the Parent Company only the cash flows from operating activities, investing activities and financing activities have been restated for the 
period ended 31 December 2020. This is due to cash flows relating to loans and advances made to subsidiary undertakings of £22.3m and 
associated repayments of these balances of £11.7m  were incorrectly classified and presented as a net cash flow movement within operating 
activities, instead of as investing activities and presented on a gross basis.  This has resulted in previously reported net cash flows from investing 
activities decreasing by £10.6m from £11.5m to £0.9m and for the increase in receivables included within operating activities to reduce by 
£10.6m. 

In addition, loans and advances received from subsidiary undertakings of £7.9m and associated repayments of these balances of £0.5m were  
incorrectly classified and presented as a net cash flow movement within operating activities, instead of as financing activities and presented on 
a gross basis. This has resulted in previously reported net cash flows used in financing activities adjusted by £7.4m from £5.3m cash outflow to 
£2.1m cash inflow and increase in payables and provisions included within operating activities to decrease by £7.4m from £13.6m to £6.2m.  

As a result of the above adjustments, the amounts reported in the comparative year relating to cash generated from operations (£5.5m outflows) 
and net cash flows from operating activities (£12.3m outflows) are adjusted by a net amount of £3.2m to £2.3m and £9.1m, respectively.

Neither of these reclassifications changes any other numbers in the remaining primary statements or notes to the financial accounts.

CONSOLIDATION
The Consolidated Financial Statements are a consolidation of the Financial Statements of the Parent Company and all entities controlled by 
the Company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year. Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control. The Group 
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect 
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. 
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the Financial Statements of subsidiaries to bring the Accounting Policies used in line with those used 
by the Group. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation. The results of subsidiaries acquired 
or disposed of during the year are included in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income from the effective date of acquisition 
or to the effective date of disposal. Non-controlling interests in the fair value of the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are identified 
separately from the Group’s equity therein. Non-controlling interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business 
combination and the non-controlling interests’ share of changes in equity since the date of the combination. 

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of investment.

GOING CONCERN
In undertaking their going concern review, which covers the period to 31 December 2023, the Directors considered the Group’s principal risk 
areas that they consider material to the assessment of going concern. In recent years, this has focused on the impact of CV-19, a risk that 
continues to be managed by the Group’s Business Continuity Committee despite the reduced threat level. 

In the current year, the Directors have assessed the Groups speed of recovery against the back drop of significant cost inflation and interest rate 
rises in modelling a base case scenario, and in compiling forecasts consideration has been given to climate risk and the costs of transitioning 
to a low carbon economy. They have also modelled what they consider to be a severe downside scenario including a significant curtailment in 
activities.  Construction and Development activity only takes place where contracted and likewise for Hallam Land where no sales are assumed 
in 2022 unless already contracted, with a c.45% reduction in sales from the base case for 2022. For Stonebridge Homes a 10% decline in 
house prices is assumed along with a 25% reduction in the number of plots sold and Banner Plant revenue declines c.20%. Each segment 
assumes a slow recovery in 2023.  This downside model assumes that acquisition and development spend is restricted other than that already 
committed and is all consistent with previous experience in recessionary environments. Having started 2022 with net debt of £43.5m and with 
c.£38m net debt held by the Group, at 28 February 2022, against facilities of £75.0m the Directors have concluded that the Group is able to 
control the level of uncommitted expenditure while delivering contracted schemes, allowing it to retain and even improve the cash position in the 
event of a severe downside scenario, although the impact of doing so on the profit and loss account would be unavoidable.  
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The Group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements through a secured loan facility. The facility was renewed on the 23 January 2020, 
at a level of £75m, for a period of three years and extended in January 2021 and January 2022 by a further two years to 23 January 2025 on the 
same terms as the existing agreement. The facility includes an accordion to increase the facility by up to £30m, which can be requested by the 
Company at a time of its choosing. None of the modelling undertaken by the Directors gives rise to any breach of bank facility covenants. The 
most sensitive covenant in our facilities relates to the ratio of EBIT (Earnings Before Interest and Tax) on a 12-month rolling basis to senior facility 
finance costs. Our downside modelling, which reflects a near 16% reduction in revenue and near 70% reduction in PBT from our base case for 
2022, demonstrates significant headroom over this covenant throughout the forecast period to the end of December 2023.

The Directors have considered the likely impacts on the business arising from the conflict in Ukraine, which has occurred subsequent to the 
balance sheet date and is ongoing at the date of approval of the financial statements.  The Directors are satisfied that the potential economic 
impacts of this event, is adequately taken into account in the severe but plausible downside scenario.

At the time of approving the Financial Statements the Directors expect that the Company and the Group will have adequate resources, liquidity 
and available bank facilities to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern 
basis of accounting in preparing the Financial Statements. Further detail is contained in the Strategic Report on pages 48 to 49.

OPERATING SEGMENTS
The chief operating decision maker is the person or group that allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating segments 
of an entity. The Group has determined that its chief operating decision maker is the Board of Henry Boot PLC (the ‘Board’).

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Board in making strategic decisions.

The Board considers the business based on the following operating segments:

• Property Investment and Development, inclusive of property investment, property development, housebuilding and associated trading activities;

• Land Promotion, inclusive of land management, development and trading activities; and 

• Construction, inclusive of its PFI company and plant hire activities.

Whilst the following is not a reportable segment, information about it is considered by the Board in conjunction with the reportable segments:

• Group overheads, comprising central services, pensions, head office administration, in-house leasing and financing activities.

JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES
Joint ventures are all entities in which the Group has shared control with another entity, established by contractual agreement. Associates are all 
entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanied by a share of between 20% and 50% of the voting 
rights. Joint ventures and associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s 
share of profits or losses is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. If the share of losses equals its investment, 
the Group does not recognise further losses, except to the extent that there are amounts receivable that are long-term and may not be settled 
in the foreseeable future. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures and associates are eliminated to the extent 
of the Group’s interest in them. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset 
transferred. The accounting policies of the joint ventures and associates are consistent with those of the Group.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL
Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration for each acquisition is measured 
as the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange) of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the 
Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.

The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration agreement. Subsequent 
changes in fair value of contingent consideration classified as a financial asset or financial liability are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 9. 
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values 
at the acquisition date. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as incurred.

Goodwill arising on consolidation of subsidiary undertakings is recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the 
cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 
recognised. Goodwill is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is subjected to an impairment test 
at the reporting date or when there has been an indication that the goodwill should be impaired, any loss is recognised immediately through 
the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income and is not subsequently reversed. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill 
is allocated to cash-generating units. The allocation is made to those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business 
combination in which goodwill arose.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
The critical judgements and estimates in applying the Group’s Accounting Policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts 
recognised in the Financial Statements, apart from those noted below, relate to revenue recognition and inventories. These are referred to 
on pages 159 and 161 and each is interpreted by management in the light of IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ and IAS 2 
‘Inventories’.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, and that could have a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities over the ensuing year, are: 

• Retirement benefit costs — the estimates used in retirement benefit costs are arrived at in conjunction with the scheme’s actuary and 
advisers, those having the most significant impact being the liabilities discount rate, RPI and mortality rates. Note 27 to the Financial 
Statements gives details of the sensitivity surrounding these estimates; 

• Fair value of investment properties and of Group occupied properties — the fair value of completed investment property and of Group occupied 
property is determined by independent valuation experts using the yield method valuation technique. The fair value of investment property under 
construction has been determined using the residual method by the Directors of the Company. The most significant estimates used in these 
valuations are rental values, yields and costs to complete. Notes 12 and 14 to the Financial Statements give details of the valuation methods 
used and the sensitivity surrounding these estimates. In determining fair value measurement, the impact of climate-related matters, including 
legislation, which may affect the fair value measurement of investment property has been considered; and

• Provisions — amounts recognised in relation to provisions are based on assumptions in respect of cost estimates, the timing of cash flows 
and discount rates used. Note 26 to the Financial Statements gives details of the sensitivity surrounding these estimates.

REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which 
the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring promised goods or services to a customer and excluding amounts collected on 
behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control over a product or service to a customer. Where consideration 
is not specified within the contract and therefore subject to variability, the Group estimates the amount of consideration to be received from its 
customer. The consideration recognised is the amount which is highly probable not to result in a significant reversal in future periods. Where a 
modification to an existing contract occurs, the Group assesses the nature of the modification and whether it represents a separate performance 
obligation required to be satisfied by the Group or whether it is a modification to the existing performance obligation.

The Group has some contracts where the period between the transfer of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the 
customer exceeds one year. The Group adjusts its transaction price for the time value of money.

The Group’s activities are wide-ranging, and as such, depending on the nature of the product or service delivered and the timing of when control 
is passed to the customer, the Group will account for revenue over time or at a point in time. Where revenue is measured over time, the Group 
uses the input method to measure progress of delivery.

Product and Service Nature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations and significant payment terms.

Construction contracts Typically, the Group’s construction contracts consist of one performance obligation, being delivery of the 
construction works. However, for certain contracts (for example where contracts involve separate phases 
or products that are not highly interrelated), multiple performance obligations exist. Where multiple 
performance obligations exist, total transaction price is allocated to performance obligations based on 
the relative standalone selling prices of each performance obligation. 

Revenue attributed to each performance obligation is recognised over time based on the percentage 
of completion, as the benefit is transferred to the customer, reflecting the enhancement in value of 
the customer’s asset. The percentage of completion is calculated as the costs incurred to date as a 
percentage of the total costs expected to satisfy the performance obligation. Estimates of revenues, 
costs or extent of progress toward completion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting 
increases or decreases in estimated revenues or costs are reflected in the percentage of completion 
calculation in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become known.

Losses are recorded in full when the unavoidable costs of fulfilling a contract exceed the economic benefits.

Any revenues recognised in excess of amounts invoiced are recognised as contract assets within current 
assets. Any payments received in excess of revenue recognised are recognised as contract liabilities 
within current liabilities.
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Sale of land and properties Revenue from the sale of land and properties is generally a single performance obligation which is 
satisfied at the point in time when control of the land and properties has passed, typically on legal 
completion when legal title has transferred. 

Land and properties are treated as disposed when control of the asset is transferred to the buyer. 
Typically, this will either occur on unconditional exchange or on completion. Where completion is 
expected to occur significantly after exchange, or where the Group continues to have significant 
outstanding obligations after exchange, the control will not usually transfer to the buyer until completion.

Variable consideration such as overages are estimated based on the amount of consideration the Group 
expects to be entitled to, taking into account the terms which may give rise to variability and it is only 
recognised where it is highly probable there will not be a significant future reversal. This is estimated at 
contract inception and reassessed over the life of the contract.

Revenue includes the fair value of consideration received or receivable on the sale of part exchange 
properties.

PFI Concession Revenue from the Group’s PFI concession is recognised at the point in time, by the calculation of 
‘shadow tolls’ based on individual vehicle usage of the A69.

The concession is accounted for in accordance with IFRIC 12 ‘Service Concession Arrangements’ using 
the intangible asset model. 

Operating leases (recognised 
as income under IFRS 16 
‘Leases’)

Revenue from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except for 
contingent rental income which is recognised in the period in which it was earned. When the Group 
provides incentives to its tenants, the cost of incentives is recognised over the lease term, on a straight-
line basis, as a reduction to revenue.

Plant and equipment hire 
(recognised as income under 
IFRS 16 ‘Leases’)

Revenue from plant and equipment hire is measured as the fair value of rental proceeds which relate to 
the period of account.

Critical judgements and estimates in applying IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
The following are the critical judgements and estimates in applying accounting policies that the Directors have made in the process of applying 
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated 
Financial Statements. 

Estimates in determining the recognition of revenue on construction contracts over time – construction contract revenue is recognised in 
accordance with the stage of completion of the contract where the contract’s outcome can be estimated reliably. The principal method used to 
recognise the stage of completion is the input method using cost incurred to date as a percentage of estimated total costs to complete. The 
assessment of the final outcome of each contract is determined by regular review of the revenues and costs to complete that contract by an 
in-house or external survey of the work. 

Judgement in determining the recognition of revenue at a point in time on land sale contracts – there is often judgement involved in evaluating 
when a customer obtains control of land during a sale, particularly where the contract includes licensing (or the granting early access to 
housebuilders before completion), risk or deferred payment term clauses. In determining the revenue recognition the Directors consider the 
present right for payment, legal title, physical possession, risks and rewards of ownership and acceptance of the asset in forming their opinion. 
Where necessary third party advice is taken.

INTEREST INCOME AND EXPENSE
Interest income and expense are recognised within ‘Finance income’ and ‘Finance costs’ in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive 
Income using the effective interest rate method, except for borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets, which are capitalised as part of the cost 
of that asset. The Group has chosen not to capitalise borrowing costs on all qualifying assets which are measured at fair value.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of allocating the 
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
payments or receipts throughout the expected life of the financial instrument, or a shorter period where appropriate, to the net carrying amount 
of the financial asset or financial liability.

LEASING
Where the Group acts as a lessor in the case of operating leases, rentals receivable are recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the 
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset 
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

LEASES
The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a 
corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with 
a lease term of 12 months or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating 
expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which 
economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

Lease liability: The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, 
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses an incremental borrowing rate which 
is the rate of interest that the lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain 
an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.

Right-of-use assets: The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease payments made at 
or before the commencement day and any initial direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses. Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss in line with the 
Group’s existing impairment accounting policy.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees of the Company and its subsidiary undertakings are measured at fair value of the equity 
instruments at the date of grant and are expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Fair value is measured by a Monte Carlo 
pricing model, taking into account any market performance conditions and excludes the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions. Details 
regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based transactions are set out in note 29. At each reporting period date, 
the Group estimates the number of equity instruments expected to vest as a result of the effect of non-market-based vesting conditions. The 
impact of the revision, if any, is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income with a corresponding adjustment to equity 
reserves.

SAYE share options are treated as cancelled when employees cease to contribute to the scheme. This results in accelerated recognition 
of the expenses that would have arisen over the remainder of the original vesting period.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS EXCLUDING GOODWILL
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment. The PFI asset which is accounted for under IFRIC 12 
‘Service Concession Arrangements’ represents the capitalised cost of the initial project, together with the capitalised cost of any additional major 
works to the road and structures, which are then amortised, on a straight-line basis, over 20 years or the remaining life of the concession. The 
concession lasts a period of 30 years and has a further four years to run.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Group occupied properties are stated in the Statement of Financial Position at their revalued amounts, being the fair value, based on market 
values, less any subsequent accumulated depreciation or subsequent accumulated impairment loss. Fair value is determined annually by 
independent valuers. Surpluses on revaluations are recorded in OCI and credited to the revaluation reserve. However, to the extent that it 
reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously recognised in profit or loss, the increase is recognised in profit or loss. Deficits on 
revaluations are charged against the revaluation reserve to the extent that there are available surpluses relating to the same asset and are 
otherwise charged to profit or loss in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income. 

In respect of land and buildings, depreciation is provided where it is considered significant, having regard to the estimated remaining useful lives 
and residual values of individual properties.

Equipment held for hire, vehicles and office equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment 
loss. Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset plus any costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its 
intended use.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method, mainly 
at the following annual rates:

• Equipment held for hire – between 10% and 50%

• Vehicles – between 10% and 25%

• Office equipment – between 25% and 33%
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INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Investment properties are those properties which are not occupied by the Group and which are held for long-term rental yields, capital 
appreciation or both. Investment property also includes property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including related transaction costs. 

At each subsequent reporting date, investment properties are remeasured to their fair value; further information regarding the valuation 
methodologies applied can be found in note 14 to the Financial Statements. Movements in fair value are included in the Consolidated Statement 
of Comprehensive Income.

Where the Group employs professional valuers, the valuations provided are subject to a comprehensive review to ensure they are based 
on accurate and up-to-date tenancy information. Discussions are also held with the valuers to test the valuation assumptions applied and 
comparable evidence utilised to ensure they are appropriate in the circumstances. 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset’s carrying value only where it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with 
the expenditure will flow to the Group. All other expenditure is expensed to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period 
in which it arises.

Investment property is derecognised when it is disposed of at its carrying value.

Where specific investment properties have been identified as being for sale within the next 12 months, a sale is considered highly probable and 
the property is immediately available for sale, their fair value is shown under assets classified as held-for-sale within current assets, measured in 
accordance with the provisions of IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’.

INVENTORIES
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value and are subject to regular impairment reviews.

Inventories comprise developments in progress, land held for development or sale, options to purchase land and planning promotion 
agreements.

• Property developments in progress includes properties being developed for onward sale.

• Housebuilder land and work in progress includes construction of residential housing for onward sale.

• Land held for development or sale is land owned by the Group that is promoted through the planning process in order to gain planning 
permission, adding value to the land.

• Options to purchase land are agreements that the Group entered into with the landowners whereby the Group has the option to purchase 
the land within a limited time frame. The landowners are not generally permitted to sell to any other party during this period, unless agreed 
to by the Group. Within the time frame the Group promotes the land through the planning process at its expense in order to gain planning 
permission. Should the Group be successful in obtaining planning permission it would trigger the option to purchase and subsequently sell 
on the land.

• Planning promotion agreements are agreements that the Group has entered into with the landowners, whereby the Group acts as an agent 
to the landowners in exchange for a fee of a set percentage of the proceeds or profit of the eventual sale. The Group promotes the land 
through the planning process at its own expense. If the land is sold the Group will receive a fee for its services.

• The Group capitalises various costs in promoting land held under planning promotion agreements. In some instances the agreements allow 
for the Group to be reimbursed certain expenditure following the conclusion of a successful sale, at which point inventory is reduced by the 
value of the reimbursed cost. These costs are held in inventory at the lower of cost and estimated net realisable value.

Inventories comprise all the direct costs incurred in bringing the individual inventories to their present state at the reporting date, including any 
reimbursable promotion costs, less the value of any impairment losses.

Impairment reviews are considered on a site-by-site or individual development basis by management at each reporting date; write-downs or 
reversals are made to ensure that inventory is then stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Net realisable value is considered in the light of progress made in the planning process, feedback from local planning officers, development 
appraisals and other external factors that might be considered likely to influence the eventual outcome. Where it is considered that no future 
economic benefit will arise, costs are written off to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Where individual parcels of land held for development are disposed of out of a larger overall development site, costs are apportioned based 
on an acreage allocation after taking into account the cost or net realisable value of any remaining residual land which may not form part of the 
overall development site or which may not be available for development. Where the Group retains obligations attached to the development site 
as a whole, provisions are made relating to these disposals on the same acreage allocation basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Critical judgements and estimates in applying IAS 2 Inventories
The following are the critical estimates in applying accounting policies that the Directors have made in the process of applying IAS 2 Inventories 
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Estimates in determining the carrying value of work in progress inventory – there is often estimation involved in forecasting future costs to 
complete and selling prices which can be affected by market conditions and unexpected events. In determining the carrying value the Directors 
consider previous experience, communications with suppliers and market trends in forming their opinion. Where necessary third party advice 
is taken.

ASSETS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a 
sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, or fair value in the case of 
Investment Property, if their carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a 
sale is considered highly probable.

TAX
The tax charge on the profit or loss for the year comprises the sum of tax currently payable and any deferred tax movements in the year.

Tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year adjusted for any tax payable or repayable in respect of earlier years. Taxable profit 
differs from net profit as reported in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income because it excludes items of income or expense that 
are taxable or deductible in other years and items that may never be taxable or deductible.

The Group’s liability for current taxation is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Corporation tax liabilities of wholly owned subsidiary companies are generally transferred to and paid by the Parent Company and credit is given 
by the Parent Company for loss relief surrendered.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the 
Financial Statements and the corresponding tax bases used in computing taxable profits.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profits or gains will be available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

The carrying value of the Group’s investment property is assumed to be realised by sale and the deferred tax is then calculated based on the 
respective temporary differences and tax consequences arising from this assumption.

Deferred tax is calculated at tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on rates 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in 
equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to do so and when the deferred tax 
assets and liabilities relate to tax levied by the same tax authority where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group retains such financial instruments as are required, together with retained earnings, in order to finance the Group’s operations.

Financial assets or financial liabilities are recognised by the Group in the Statement of Financial Position only when the Group becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The principal financial instruments are:

• Trade and other receivables are measured initially at fair value and then amortised cost — where the time value of money is material, 
receivables are amortised using the effective interest rate method (see Interest income and expense in notes 5 and 6). IFRS 9’s simplified 
approach to provisioning is used to calculate the Group’s lifetime expected credit loss; 

• Cash and cash equivalents, which comprise cash in hand, demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value with an original maturity of three months 
or less; 

• Trade and other payables which are on normal credit terms, are not interest bearing and are stated at their nominal values — where the time 
value of money is material, payables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method (see Interest income and expense 
in notes 5 and 6); and

• Borrowings — see below. 

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of 
outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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BORROWINGS
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; 
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. 

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or 
all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred and amortised until the drawdown occurs. To the extent that there is no 
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and 
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position, within deferred income, where there is 
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached conditions will be complied with. 

Government grants relating to revenue items are released to the Statement of Comprehensive Income and recognised within cost of sales over 
the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to capital items are released against the carrying value of the grant supported assets when the completion 
conditions of those assets are met.

PROVISIONS
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event. It is probable that the 
Group will be required to settle that obligation with an outflow of economic benefits and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the 
obligation. 

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date, 
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to 
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows. Onerous contracts are provided for at the lower of 
costs or termination.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is 
recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

The land promotion provision represents management’s best estimate of the Group’s liability to provide infrastructure and services as a result of 
obligations which remain with the Group following the disposal of land. Where the infrastructure and services obligations relate to developments 
on which land is being disposed of over a number of phases, provisions are calculated based on an acreage allocation methodology taking into 
account the expected timing of cash outflows to settle the obligations.

The Group regularly reviews its contract obligations and whether they are considered to be onerous. In the event that the costs of meeting the 
obligations exceed the economic benefits expected to be received through the life of the development, a provision would be recognised based 
on the lower of the cost of fulfilling the contract or terminating the contract.

The road maintenance provision represents management’s best estimate of the Group’s liability under a five-year rolling programme for the 
maintenance of the Group’s PFI asset.

Other provisions include any liabilities where the Directors anticipate that a present obligation would result in a future outflow of resources, 
including legal and regulatory penalties or claims, being taken into account in the Financial Statements.

Specific details of the Group’s provisions relating to land promotion and road maintenance can be found in note 26.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS
Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefit scheme are charged as an expense as they fall due.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit retirement scheme is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial 
calculations being carried out at each reporting date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in which they occur. They 
are recognised within ‘Other comprehensive income’ within the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. The net periodic benefit 
cost, comprising the employer’s share of the service cost and the net interest cost, is charged to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive 
Income. The Group’s net obligations in respect of the scheme are calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have 
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. This is then discounted to present value and the fair value of the scheme’s 
assets is then deducted.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary share capital is classified as equity. Preference share capital is classified as equity as it is non-redeemable or is redeemable only at the 
Company’s option and any dividends are discretionary. Dividends on preference share capital classified as equity are recognised as distributions 
within equity.

DIVIDENDS
The Group recognises a liability to pay a final dividend when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of 
the  Group. Under UK company law a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. An interim dividend is recognised when 
paid. A corresponding amount is then recognised directly in equity.

IMPACT OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
At the date of authorisation of these Financial Statements, the following standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards 
are effective or mandatory for the first time for the accounting year ended 31 December 2021:

Effective from

IFRS 16 (amended 2020) ‘Covid-19-related rent concessions’ 1 June 2020
IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 
(amended 2020) ‘Interest rate benchmark reform’ 1 January 2021

IFRS 4 (amended 2020) ‘Extension of the temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9’ Immediately available

The adoption of these standards and interpretations has not had a significant impact on the Group.

At the date of the authorisation of these Financial Statements, the following standards, amendments and interpretations were in issue but not yet 
effective:

Effective from

IFRS 17 (issued 2017) ‘Insurance Contracts’ 1 January 2023
IAS 1 (amended 2020) ‘Classification of liabilities as current or non-current’ 1 January 2023

IFRS 3 (amended 2020) ‘’Reference to the Conceptual Framework’ 1 January 2022

IAS 16 (amended 2020) ‘Proceeds before intended use’ 1 January 2022

IAS 37 (amended 2020) ‘Costs of fulfilling a contract’ 1 January 2022

Annual Improvements (issued 2020) ‘Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018 - 2020’ 1 January 2022

IFRS 17 (amended 2020) ‘Implementation challenges’ 1 January 2023

IAS 1 (amended 2021) ‘Disclosure of accounting policies’ 1 January 2023

IAS 8 (amended 2021 ‘Definition of accounting estimates’ 1 January 2023

IFRS 16 (amended 2021) ‘Covid-19-related rent concessions beyond June 2021’ 1 April 2021
IAS 12 (amended 2021) ‘Deferred tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a single 

transaction’
1 January 2023

IFRS 17 (amended 2021) ‘Initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - comparative information’ 1 January 2023

A review of the impact of these standards, amendments and interpretations has been conducted and the Directors do not believe that they will 
give rise to any significant financial impact.

In 2021, the Group did not early adopt any new or amended standards and does not plan to early adopt any of the standards issued but not yet 
effective.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Henry Boot PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021164



1. REVENUE
Analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

Timing of revenue 
recognition

Timing of revenue 
recognition

Activity in the United Kingdom
2021
£’000

At a point 
in time

£’000
Over time

£’000
2020
£’000

At a point 
in time
£’000

Over time
£’000

Construction contracts:

– Construction1 74,431 — 74,431 90,596 — 90,596

– Property Investment and Development2 4,405 — 4,405 33,301 — 33,301

Sale of land and properties:

– Property Investment and Development2 9,622 9,622 — 9,964 9,964 —

– Housebuilder unit sales2 49,494 49,494 — 38,222 38,222 —

– Land Promotion3 58,410 58,410 — 20,890 20,890 —

PFI concession1 11,115 11,115 — 10,868 10,868 —

Revenue from contracts  
with customers 207,477 128,641 78,836 203,841 79,944 123,897

Plant and equipment hire1 17,129 14,448

Investment property rental income2 5,772 3,280

Other rental income – Property Investment 
and Development2 67 720

Other rental income – Land Promotion3 153 122

230,598 222,411

1 Construction segment 

2 Property Investment and Development segment

3 Land Promotion segment

Contingent rents recognised as investment property rental income during the year amount to £357,000 (2020: £258,000).

2. SEGMENT INFORMATION
For the purpose of the Board making strategic decisions, the Group is currently organised into three operating segments: Property Investment 
and Development; Land Promotion; and Construction. Group overheads are not a reportable segment; however, information about them is 
considered by the Board in conjunction with the reportable segments.

Operations are carried out entirely within the United Kingdom.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market prices.

In the prior year, the Construction segment made sales to a single external customer amounting to 22.0% of the Group’s total revenue.  
This related to two high-value contracts which commenced in 2018 and continue through to early 2021. The segment has a number of other 
contracts in progress and is not reliant on any major customer individually.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group’s Accounting Policies. The Group’s Principal Accounting Policies 
are described on pages 156 to 164.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment before tax and is consistent with the measure reported to the Group’s Board for 
the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance.

Revenues from external sales are detailed in note 1.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2. SEGMENT INFORMATION CONTINUED
 2021

Revenue

Property
Investment and

Development
£’000

Land
Promotion

£’000
Construction

£’000

Group
overheads

£’000
Eliminations

£’000
Total
£’000

External sales 69,360 58,563 102,675 — — 230,598
Inter-segment sales 290 — 7,606 526 (8,422) —
Total revenue 69,650 58,563 110,281 526 (8,422) 230,598
Gross profit 14,924 23,257 17,363 52 (50) 55,546
Administrative expenses and pension (14,959) (5,726) (8,401) (9,177) 50 (38,213)
Other operating income/(expense) 18,296 (56) — — — 18,240
Operating profit/(loss) 18,261 17,475 8,962 (9,125) — 35,573
Finance income 4,538 698 765 19,060 (24,337) 724
Finance costs (7,002) (139) (467) (2,303) 8,756 (1,155)
Profit before tax 15,797 18,034 9,260 7,632 (15,581) 35,142
Tax (2,927) (2,244) (1,798) 2,487 — (4,482)
Profit for the year 12,870 15,790 7,462 10,119 (15,581) 30,660
Other information
Capital additions 17,430 — 6,524 380 — 24,334

Depreciation of plant, property and 
equipment and right-of-use assets 76 10 2,864 584 — 3,534
Impairment 285 — 203 — — 488
Amortisation of intangible assets — — 602 — — 602

Increase in fair value of investment 
properties (7,972) — — — — (7,972)
Provisions — 1,051 1,499 — — 2,550
Pension scheme credit — — — (920) — (920)

 2020

Revenue

Property
Investment and

Development
£’000

Land
Promotion

£’000
Construction

£’000

Group
overheads

£’000
Eliminations

£’000
Total

£’000

External sales 85,487 21,012 115,912 — — 222,411

Inter-segment sales 296 — 500 647 (1,443) —

Total revenue 85,783 21,012 116,412 647 (1,443) 222,411

Gross profit 12,977 12,319 15,200 32 (61) 40,467

Administrative expenses and pension (11,024) (4,402) (9,872) (8,106) 61 (33,343)

Other operating income 2,929 6,247 1,175 — — 10,351

Operating profit/(loss) 4,882 14,164 6,503 (8,074) — 17,475

Finance income 4,377 212 812 11,532 (16,212) 721

Finance costs (3,638) (390) (638) (2,171) 5,720 (1,117)

Profit before tax 5,621 13,986 6,677 1,287 (10,492) 17,079

Tax 1,864 (2,898) (1,898) (422) — (3,354)

Profit for the year 7,485 11,088 4,779 865 (10,492) 13,725

Other information
Capital additions 11,960 — 2,779 631 — 15,370

Depreciation of plant, property and 
equipment and right-of-use assets 420 30 3,368 754 — 4,572

Impairment — — 2,218 — — 2,218

Amortisation of intangible assets — — 570 — — 570

Increase in fair value of investment 
properties (1,266) — — — — (1,266)

Provisions — 129 1,209 — — 1,338

Pension scheme credit — — — (2,233) — (2,233)
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2. SEGMENT INFORMATION CONTINUED
2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Segment assets
Property Investment and Development1 310,421 217,863

Land Promotion 145,596 151,988

Construction 43,205 32,447

Group overheads 2,323 2,854

501,545 405,152

Unallocated assets
Deferred tax assets 3,389 7,342

Current tax receivables 1,828 —

Cash and cash equivalents 11,116 42,125

Total assets 517,878 454,619

Segment liabilities
Property Investment and Development 36,169 35,292

Land Promotion 11,523 11,934

Construction 40,418 37,554

Group overheads 3,071 3,651

91,181 88,431

Unallocated liabilities
Current tax liabilities — 1,129

Deferred tax liabilities 4,582 —

Current lease liabilities 639 603

Current borrowings 52,941 2,941

Non-current lease liabilities 1,021 1,613

Non-current borrowings — 9,969

Retirement benefit obligations 12,228 36,445

Total liabilities 162,592 141,131

Total net assets 355,286 313,488

1 Includes investment in joint ventures and associates of £12,165,000 (2020: £5,840,000).

3. OPERATING PROFIT
Operating profit has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 12) 3,534 3,585

Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 13) 598 987

Impairment of goodwill included in administrative expenses (note 11) 203 2,218

Impairment of land and buildings included in administrative expenses (note 12) 285 —

Amortisation of PFI asset included in cost of sales (note 11) 602 570

Amortisation of capitalised letting fees (note 14) 41 30

Impairment losses recognised on trade receivables (note 18) 779 481

Low-value and short-term operating leases — 68

Increase in fair value of investment property (note 14) (7,972) (1,266)

Cost of inventories recognised as expense 80,241 45,815

Employee costs 38,439 32,289

Amounts payable to Mazars LLP by Road Link (A69) Limited in respect of audit services 12 11

Gross profit on sale of equipment held for hire (981) (854)

Gain on sale of other property plant and equipment (16) (85)

Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets 10 89
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

3. OPERATING PROFIT CONTINUED
The remuneration paid to Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s external auditors, was as follows:

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Fees payable for the audit of the Company’s annual Financial Statements and Consolidated 
Financial Statements 167 147

Fees payable to the auditors and their associates for other services:

– audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 298 273

Total audit fees 465 420

4. EMPLOYEE COSTS
Group Parent Company

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Wages and salaries 27,689 22,837 3,968 3,351

Share-based payment expense 968 975 413 391

Social security costs 3,448 2,761 593 396

Defined benefit pension costs (see note 27) 3,407 2,160 2,855 (105)

Defined contribution pension costs (see note 27) 2,521 2,293 316 286

Other pension costs 111 99 17 15

38,144 31,125 8,162 4,334

Included within employee costs a £820,000 debit for repayment of furlough grant income from the Government’s Job Retention Scheme introduced 
in response to the CV-19 pandemic. 

The average monthly number of employees during the year, including Executive Directors, was:

2021
Number

2020
Number

Property Investment and Development 112 115

Land Promotion 30 31

Construction 151 184

Plant Hire 137 145

Parent Company 66 68

496 543

5. FINANCE INCOME
2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Interest on bank deposits 2 292

Interest on other loans and receivables 127 220

Unwinding of discounting: trade receivables 595 209

724 721
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6. FINANCE COSTS
2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 747 632

Interest on other loans and payables 59 119

Unwinding of discounting: trade payables and borrowings 349 366

1,155 1,117

7. TAX
2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Current tax:

UK corporation tax on profits for the year 2,752 2,824

Adjustment in respect of earlier years (1,683) 245

Total current tax 1,069 3,069

Deferred tax (note 19):

Origination and reversal of temporary differences 3,457 285

Adjustment in respect of prior years 105 —

Impact of rate change (149) —

Total deferred tax 3,413 285

Total tax 4,482 3,354

Corporation tax is calculated at 19% (2020: 19%) of the estimated assessable profit for the year. 

In the Spring Budget 2021, the Government announced that from 1 April 2023 the main rate of UK corporation tax would increase to 25%. This 
new law was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021; deferred tax balances at the year end have been measured at 25% (2020: 19%), being the 
rate at which timing differences are expected to reverse. 

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income as follows:

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Profit before tax 35,142 17,079

2021
%

2020
%

Tax at the UK corporation tax rate 19.00 19.00

Effects of:

Permanent differences 0.57 2.60

Capital gains (0.78) 1.40

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised being £nil (2020: £297,000) (0.09) (1.74)

Impact of rate differences (0.42) —

Deferred tax adjustment in respect of prior years 0.30 —

Corporation tax adjustment in respect of earlier years (4.79) 0.33

Joint venture results reported net of tax (1.03) (1.95)

Effective tax rate 12.76 19.64

The tax charge in the year is lower (2020: higher) than the standard rate of corporation tax predominantly due to adjustments in respect of earlier 
years arising from additional loss relief on asset disposals (2020: impairment of goodwill which is ineligible for tax relief and dry tax charges on 

the transfer of assets from inventories to investment property offset by joint venture profits presented net of tax).

In addition to the amount charged to profit for the year, the following amounts relating to tax have been recognised in other comprehensive income:

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Deferred tax:

– property revaluations (282) —

– actuarial (gain)/loss (4,840) 3,089

Total tax recognised in other comprehensive expense (5,122) 3,089
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

8. RESULTS OF PARENT COMPANY
As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Statement of Comprehensive Income of the Parent Company is not presented  
as part of these Financial Statements. The profit dealt with in the Financial Statements of the Parent Company and approved by the Board on  
13 April 2022 is £8,938,000 (2020: £552,000) and includes dividends received from subsidiaries of £14,530,000 (2020: £7,897,000).

9. EARNINGS PER ORDINARY SHARE
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following information:

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Profit for the year 30,660 13,725
Non-controlling interests (2,500) (1,804)
Preference dividend (21) (21)

28,139 11,900

2021
No.

2020
No.

Weighted average number of shares in issue 133,264,346 133,176,230
Less shares held by the ESOP on which dividends have been waived (439,261) (486,654)
Weighted average number for basic earnings per share 132,825,085 132,689,576
Adjustment for the effects of dilutive potential ordinary shares 2,645,458 690,392
Weighted average number for diluted earnings per share 135,470,543 133,379,968

2021 2020
Basic earnings per share 21.2p 9.0p
Diluted earnings per share 20.9p 8.9p

The Group has two types of dilutive potential ordinary shares being: those share options granted to employees where the exercise price is less 
than the average market price of the Company’s ordinary shares during the year; and expected future vesting of shares under the 2015 Long-

Term Incentive Plan.

10. DIVIDENDS
2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:
Preference dividend on cumulative preference shares 21 21
Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020 of 3.30p per share (2019: 1.30p) 4,383 1,724
Interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 of 2.42p per share (2020: 2.20p) 3,216 2,919

7,620 4,664

The proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 of 3.63p per share (2020: 3.30p) makes a total dividend for the year of 6.05p 
(2020: 5.50p). 

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM and has not been included as a liability in these Financial 
Statements. The total estimated dividend to be paid is £4,800,000.

Notice has been received from Moore Street Securities Limited waiving its right as corporate trustee for the Employee Share Ownership Plan 
(‘ESOP’) to receive all dividends in respect of this and the previous financial year.

Dividends paid to non-controlling interests during the year amounted to £740,000 (2020: £1,159,000).
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11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill
£’000

PFI
asset
£’000

Total
£’000

Cost
At 1 January 2020 6,988 18,690 25,678

Additions at cost — 283 283

Disposals at cost (2,015) — (2,015)

At 31 December 2020 4,973 18,973 23,946

Additions at cost — 203 203
At 31 December 2021 4,973 19,176 24,149
Accumulated impairment losses and amortisation
At 1 January 2020 3,121 15,734 18,855

Amortisation — 570 570

Impairment losses for the year 2,218 — 2,218
Eliminated on disposal (2,015) — (2,015)

At 31 December 2020 3,324 16,304 19,628

Amortisation — 602 602
Impairment losses for the year 203 — 203
At 31 December 2021 3,527 16,906 20,433
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 1,446 2,270 3,716
At 31 December 2020 1,649 2,669 4,318

The Group acquired the trade and assets of Premier Plant Tool Hire & Sales Limited on 30 March 2017. They were immediately hived up into 
the immediate parent company Banner Plant Limited, which sits in the Construction segment. The goodwill arising on the acquisition, which 
has a current net book value of £903,000 (2020: £903,000), represents the excess of consideration over net assets acquired and is subject 
to an impairment test at the reporting date. The cash generating units assessed for impairment are the Leicester depots of Banner Plant 
Limited, which were formerly Premier Plant Tool Hire & Sales Limited’s only operational sites. Impairment calculations use pre-tax cash flow 
projections including revenue growth of 3.0% per annum into perpetuity which reflects past experience and management’s future expectations. 
Management estimates discount rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and risk specific to the cash 
generating unit of 3.5%.

The Group’s investment in Road Link (A69) Holdings Limited is 61.2%. The goodwill arising on the acquisition which has a current net book 
value of £543,000 (2020: £746,000) represents the excess of consideration over net assets acquired and is subject to an impairment test at the 
reporting date. This company’s subsidiary, Road Link (A69) Limited, operates a PFI concession which comprises managing and maintaining the 
A69 Carlisle to Newcastle trunk road. The Company receives payment from Highways England based on the number and type of vehicles using 
the road. The concession lasts for a period of 30 years and has a further four years to run, at the end of which the road reverts to Highways 
England. Whilst the impairment test demonstrates significant headroom based on forecast levels of return being consistent with prior years, an 
impairment charge of £203,000 (2020: £203,000) has been recognised during the year. This reflects the fact that the PFI concession will revert 
to Highways England at the end of the 30-year period, at which point no goodwill should remain. There were no significant changes to these 
arrangements during the year.

Amortisation of the PFI asset is recognised within cost of sales in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Although the Companies Act 2006 Section 390(5) requires a coterminous year end, the subsidiary company’s accounting reference date is  
31 March in order to align with Highways England’s financial year end and hence interim Financial Statements are prepared for incorporation  
into these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Group

Land and
buildings

£’000 

Equipment
held

for hire 
 £’000

Vehicles
 £’000 

Office
equipment

£’000
Total

 £’000

Cost or fair value
At 1 January 2020 7,842 35,675 5,444 3,310 52,271

Additions at cost 131 2,201 707 86 3,125

Disposals — (2,780) (932) (129) (3,841)

Transfers from right-of-use asset1 — 4,789 616 — 5,405

Decrease in fair value in year (651) — — — (651)

At 31 December 2020 7,322 39,885 5,835 3,267 56,309

Additions at cost — 5,952 473 388 6,813
Disposals — (2,449) (976) (47) (3,472)
At 31 December 2021 7,322 43,388 5,332 3,608 59,650
Being:

Cost — 43,388 5,332 3,608 52,328
Fair value at 31 December 2021 7,322 — — — 7,322

7,322 43,388 5,332 3,608 59,650
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2020 342 24,853 2,548 2,513 30,256

Charge for year 85 2,235 822 443 3,585

Transfer from right-of-use asset1 — 1,781 195 — 1,976

Eliminated on disposals — (2,475) (723) (128) (3,326)

At 31 December 2020 427 26,394 2,842 2,828 32,491
Charge for year — 2,474 786 274 3,534
Impairment 285 — — — 285
Eliminated on disposals — (2,271) (692) (46) (3,009)
At 31 December 2021 712 26,597 2,936 3,056 33,301

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 6,610 16,791 2,396 552 26,349
At 31 December 2020 6,895 13,491 2,993 439 23,818
1  Right-of-use assets are transferred to property, plant and equipment where the lease obligation has been settled and the Group retains ownership of the asset.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and equipment amounting to 
£3,420,000 (2020: £1,437,000).

Fair value measurements of the Group’s land and buildings
Land and buildings have been revalued at 31 December 2021 by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited and Dove Haigh Phillips LLP in accordance 
with the Practice Statements contained in the RICS Appraisal and Valuation Standards on the basis of market value at £6,610,000 (2020: 
£6,895,000). Jones Lang LaSalle Limited and Dove Haigh Phillips LLP are professional valuers who hold recognised and professional 
qualifications and have recent experience in the location and category of the land and buildings being valued. 

The valuation conforms to International Valuation Standards and was based on recent market transactions with similar characteristics and 
location using the yield method valuation technique. The yield method of valuation involves applying market-derived capitalisation yields, and the 
actual or market-derived future income streams where appropriate, with adjustments for letting voids or rent-free periods as applicable to each 
item of land and buildings.

On the historical cost basis, the land and buildings would have been included at a carrying amount of £4,269,000 (2020: £4,554,000). 
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT CONTINUED
The following table provides an analysis of the fair values of land and buildings by the degree to which the fair value is observable:

Level 1
£’000

Level 2
£’000

Level 3
£’000

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Decrease
 in year

£’000
Freehold land — — 60 60 60 —
Buildings — — 6,550 6,550 6,835 (285)
Total fair value — — 6,610 6,610 6,895 (285)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances 
that causes the transfer. The Directors determine the applicable hierarchy that land and buildings fall into by assessing the level of comparable 
evidence in the market which that asset falls into and the inherent level of activity. As at the reporting date and throughout the year, all land and 
buildings were determined to fall into Level 3 and so there were no transfers between hierarchies.

Explanation of the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 –  fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets  
or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 –  fair value measurements are those derived from the use of a model with inputs (other than quoted prices included  
in Level 1) that are observable from directly or indirectly observable market data; and

Level 3 –  fair value measurements are those derived from use of a model with inputs that are not based on observable  
market data.

Information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

Class Buildings

Valuation technique Yield 
Rental value per sq ft (£) – weighted average 6.17

– low 2.34
– high 16.25

Yield % – weighted average 9.36
– low 7.17
– high 11.83

The sensitivity analysis to significant changes in unobservable inputs relating to fair value measurements (Level 3) are set out below:

Impact on 
valuation 

£’000
Buildings

Yield – improvement by 0.5% 355
Rental value per sq ft – increase of £1 average 1,100

The sensitivities have been selected by management on the basis that they consider these measures to be a reasonable expectation of likely 
changes to the significant unobservable inputs in the next 12 months.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT CONTINUED

Parent Company

Office
equipment

£’000

Cost
At 1 January 2020 1,014

Additions 54

Disposals —

At 31 December 2020 1,068

Additions 280
Disposals —
At 31 December 2021 1,347
Accumulated depreciation

At 1 January 2020 683

Charge for year 203

Disposals —

At 31 December 2020 886

Charge for year 144
Disposals —
At 31 December 2021 1,030
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 317
At 31 December 2020 182

13. LEASES
Group Parent Company

Right-of-use assets
2021
£’000

2020
£’000

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Land and buildings 1,249 1,655 — —

Vehicles 2 8 11 48

Office equipment 330 447 65 89

1,581 2,110 76 137

Lease liabilities
Due within one year 639 603 41 54

Due after more than one year 1,021 1,613 37 86

1,660 2,216 78 140

Contractual maturities of lease liabilities including future interest:

On demand or within one year 676 654 42 57

In the second year 447 655 27 49

In the third to fifth years inclusive 564 901 11 39

In more than five years 63 151 — —

Total contractual cash flows 1,750 2,361 80 145

Future finance charges on lease liabilities (90) (145) (2) (5)

Present value of contractual cash flows 1,660 2,216 78 140

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2021 financial year were £69,000 (2020: £512,000) for the Group and £65,000 (2020: £37,000) 
for the Parent Company.
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13. LEASES CONTINUED
The statement of profit or loss shows the following amounts relating to leases:

Group Parent Company

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

Land and buildings 470 434 — —

Equipment held for hire — 436 — —

Vehicles 5 10 23 32

Office equipment 123 107 30 24

598 987 53 56

Interest expense (included in finance cost) 58 91 3 5

The total cash outflow for leases in 2021 was £683,000 (2020: £3,024,000) for the Group and £131,000 (2020: £67,000) for the Parent 
Company.

The Group leases various offices, equipment and vehicles. Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 4 to 10 years and may have 
extension options. 

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-lease 
components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to 
separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for these as a single lease component. 

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not 
impose any covenants other than the security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as 
security for borrowing purposes. 

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the 
following lease payments: 

• Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable; 

• Variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date; 

• Amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value guarantees; 

• The exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and 

• Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising that option. 

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are also included in the measurement of the liability. 

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the 
case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the lease 
liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and 
adjusted against the right-of-use asset. 

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to 
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. 

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following: 

• The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability 

• Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received 

• Any initial direct costs, and restoration costs

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group 
is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life. While the Group 
revalues its land and buildings that are presented within property, plant and equipment, it has chosen not to do so for the right-of-use buildings 
held by the Group. 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Henry Boot PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 175



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

13. LEASES CONTINUED
Payments associated with short-term leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis 
as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value assets comprise IT equipment 
and small items of office furniture (note 3). Cash outflows during the period related to these leases equal the rent expense in note 3 and are 
included within operating activities in the Statement of Cash Flows.

The Group as lessor

The Group has entered into operating leases on its investment property portfolio which typically have lease terms between one and 25 years, 
and include clauses to enable periodic upward revision of the rental charge according to prevailing market conditions. Ordinarily, the lessee does 
not have an option to purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period and some leases contain options to break before the end of the 
lease term.

Future aggregate minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases at 31 December are as follows:

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Within one year 4,048 3,357

After one year but not more than five years 14,512 11,807

More than five years 47,052 54,286

65,612 69,450

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
Fair value measurements recognised in the Statement of Financial Position
The following table provides an analysis of the fair values of investment properties recognised in the Statement of Financial Position by the 
degree to which the fair value is observable:

Level 1
£’000

Level 2
£’000

Level 3
£’000

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Increase/
(decrease)

in year
£’000

Completed investment property
Industrial — — 46,796 46,796 31,550 15,246

Leisure — — 9,598 9,598 9,427 171

Mixed-use — — 7,483 7,483 7,260 223

Residential — — 4,127 4,127 4,106 21

Office — — 9,938 9,938 11,450 (1,512)

Retail — — 17,235 17,235 14,937 2,298

— — 95,177 95,177 78,730 16,447

Investment property under construction
Industrial — — 9,000 9,000 1,629 7,371

Retail — — — — 2,364 (2,364)

— — 9,000 9,000 3,993 5,007

Total carrying amount — — 104,177 104,177 82,723 21,454

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that 
causes the transfer. The Directors determine the applicable hierarchy that a property falls into by assessing the level of comparable evidence 
in the market which that asset falls into and the inherent level of activity. As at the reporting date and throughout the year, all property was 
determined to fall into Level 3 and so there were no transfers between hierarchies.
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES CONTINUED
Explanation of the fair value hierarchy:

Level 1 –  fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets  
or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 –  fair value measurements are those derived from the use of a model with inputs (other than quoted prices included  
in Level 1) that are observable from directly or indirectly observable market data; and

Level 3 –  fair value measurements are those derived from use of a model with inputs that are not based on observable  
market data.

Investment properties have been split into different classes to show the composition of the investment property portfolio of the Group as at the 
reporting date. Management has determined that aggregation of the results would be most appropriate based on the type of use that each 
property falls into, which is described below:

Class
Industrial Includes manufacturing and warehousing, which are usually similar in dimensions and construction method.

Leisure Includes restaurants and gymnasiums or properties in which the main activity is the provision of entertainment and 
leisure facilities to the public.

Mixed-use Includes schemes where there are different types of uses contained within one physical asset, the most usual 
combination being retail, office and leisure.

Residential Includes dwellings under assured tenancies.

Retail Includes any property involved in the sale of goods.

Land Includes land held for future capital appreciation as an investment.

Office Includes buildings occupied for business activities not involving storage or processing of physical goods.

Investment properties under construction are categorised based on the future anticipated highest and best use of the property.

Completed investment property

Class
Fair value hierarchy

Industrial
Level 3
£’000

Leisure
Level 3 
£’000

Mixed-use
Level 3
£’000

Residential
Level 3
£’000

Office
Level 3
£’000

Retail
Level 3
£’000

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Carrying value
At 1 January 31,550 9,427 7,260 4,106 11,450 14,937 78,730 61,764
Initial acquisition 11,268 — — — — — 11,268 —

Subsequent expenditure on investment 
property 220 — 250 — 32 — 502 193

Capitalised letting fees 112 — 17 — — — 129 90

Amortisation of capitalised letting fees (17) (15) (7) — — (2) (41) (30)

Disposals — — — (232) — (5,080) (5,312) (8)

Transfer from inventory — — — — — 1,517 1,517 245

Transfers from investment property under 
construction — — — — — 3,741 3,741 17,040

Increase/(decrease) in fair value in year 3,663 186 (37) 253 (1,544) 2,122 4,643 (564)

At 31 December 46,796 9,598 7,483 4,127 9,938 17,235 95,177 78,730

Adjustment in respect of tenant incentives 654 212 17 — 312 365 1,560 561
Market value at 31 December 47,450 9,810 7,500 4,127 10,250 17,600 96,737 79,291

Tenant incentives are included in trade receivables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES CONTINUED 

There is no actively traded market for the Group’s commercial property and as such the adopted valuation is completed using the professional 
judgement of the Group’s professional valuers, who use the yield method to determine fair value. The calculation of the capital value of a property 
under this method uses a yield to multiple against the rental income stream with due allowance for a fixed assumed purchaser’s cost. The 
primary variables of the yield method are thus: the yield, which is based on historic yields for properties that are similar but to which there may be 
adjustment to take into account, factors such as geographical location and lease terms; and the contracted rent, which is based on contracted 
rents that exist at the balance sheet date, but may also include a provision for rents that may be achieved in the future after accounting for a period 
of vacancy, such rents being based on rental income terms that exist in similar properties, adjusted for geographic location and lease terms.

With the exception of the residential class, completed investment property has been revalued at 31 December 2021 by Jones Lang LaSalle 
Limited in accordance with the Practice Statements contained in the RICS Valuation - Global Standards (the ‘Red Book’) on the basis of 
market value at £92,609,000 (2020: £75,185,000). Jones Lang LaSalle Limited are professional valuers who hold recognised and professional 
qualifications and have recent experience in the location and category of the investment property being valued. The valuation conforms to 
International Valuation Standards, as incorporated within the Red Book and was based on recent market transactions with similar characteristics 
and location using the yield method valuation technique. The yield method of valuation involves applying market-derived capitalisation yields, and 
the actual or market-derived future income streams where appropriate, with adjustments for letting voids or rent-free periods as applicable to 
each property. For all completed investment properties, their current use equates to the highest and best use.

Residential properties are valued using recent comparable sales transactions with a significant unobservable input being the discount used, to 
reflect the lower value achieved where properties are held under an assured tenancy, that typically earn a low market level of rent. The discount 
applied recognises that the value is higher where the house is offered with the benefit of vacant possession at the end of the assured tenancy.

The fair value of the residential class at 31 December 2021 has been determined by the Directors of the Company at £4,128,000 
(2020: £4,106,000). The fair value takes into account market evidence based on recent comparable sale transactions adjusted to take into 
account the tenanted nature of the properties.

Information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

2021

Class Industrial Leisure Mixed-use Residential Office Retail

Valuation technique Yield Yield Yield
Sales 

comparison Yield Yield
Rental value per sq ft (£) – weighted average 4.44 15.88 15.26 — 26.82 14.57

– low 0.56 1.75 7.50 — 26.50 8.21
– high 11.00 45.05 24.65 — 27.50 21.40

Yield % – weighted average 4.98 6.54 5.08 — 8.96 5.08
– low 2.73 4.79 3.09 — 6.91 3.97
– high 9.05 9.76 24.26 — 11.70 9.00

% discount applied to houses held under 
assured tenancies — — — 25.00 — —

2020

Class Industrial Leisure Mixed-use Residential Office Retail

Valuation technique Yield Yield Yield
Sales 

comparison Yield Yield
Rental value per sq ft (£) – weighted average 4.14 14.96 26.61 — 24.33 15.10

– low 0.56 1.67 7.50 — 19.46 10.00
– high 8.70 45.05 63.39 — 26.50 21.40

Yield % – weighted average 5.20 6.25 8.75 — 8.38 5.42
– low 2.48 5.20 9.65 — 5.92 4.83
– high 6.27 8.93 12.00 — 10.81 9.00

% discount applied to houses held under 
assured tenancies — — — 25.00 — —

There is considered to be no inter-relationship between observable and unobservable inputs.
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES CONTINUED 

The sensitivity analysis to significant changes in unobservable inputs relating to fair value measurements (Level 3) is set out below:

Impact on valuation 2021 £’000
Industrial Leisure Mixed-use Residential Office Retail

Yield – improvement by 0.5% 4,519 719 377 — 668 1,393
Rental value per sq ft – increase by £1 average 11,083 644 255 — 456 1,378
Tenancy discount – increase by 1% — — — 50 — —

Impact on valuation 2020 £’000

Industrial Leisure Mixed-use Residential Office Retail

Yield – improvement by 0.5% 2,930 731 398 — 708 1,464

Rental value per sq ft – increase by £1 average 8,409 663 277 — 510 1,097

Tenancy discount – increase by 1% — — — 50 — —

The sensitivities have been selected by management on the basis that it considers these measures to be a reasonable expectation of likely 
changes to the significant unobservable inputs in the next 12 months.

The property rental income earned by the Group from its occupied investment property, all of which is leased out under operating leases, 
amounted to £5,772,000 (2020: £3,280,000). Direct operating expenses arising on investment property generating rental income in the year 
amounted to £1,274,000 (2020: £608,000). Direct operating expenses arising on the investment property which did not generate rental income 
during the year amounted to £162,000 (2020: £179,000). 

At 31 December 2021, the Group had entered into contractual commitments for the acquisition and repair of investment property amounting to 
£nil (2020: £310,000).

Investment property under construction

Class
Fair value hierarchy

Industrial
 Level 3

£’000

Land
Level 3
£’000

Retail
Level 3
£’000

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Carrying value

At 1 January 1,629 — 2,364 3,993 8,238

Subsequent expenditure on investment property 4,724 — 695 5,419 11,633

Capitalised letting fees — — — — 46

Disposals — — — — (714)

Transfers to completed investment property — — (3,741) (3,741) (17,040)

Increase in fair value in year 2,647 — 682 3,329 1,830

At 31 December 9,000 — — 9,000 3,993

Adjustment in respect of tenant incentives — — — — —

Market value at 31 December 9,000 — — 9,000 3,993

Tenant incentives are included in trade receivables.
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES CONTINUED 

Investment property under construction
Information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

2021
Class Industrial Retail

Valuation technique Residual Residual

Rental value per sq ft (£) – weighted average 6.10 —
– low 6.10 —
– high 6.10 —

Yield % – weighted average 4.1 —
– low 4.1 —
– high 4.1 —

2020

Class Industrial Retail

Valuation technique Residual Residual

Rental value per sq ft (£) – weighted average 2.28 1.46

– low 2.28 1.46

– high 2.28 1.46

Yield % – weighted average 5.20 5.00

– low 5.20 5.00

– high 5.20 5.00

Cost to complete per sq ft (£) – weighted average 29.95 6.08

– low 29.95 6.08

– high 29.95 6.08

The sensitivity analysis to significant changes in unobservable inputs relating to fair value measurements (Level 3) is set out below:

Impact on valuation 2021 
£’000

Industrial Retail

Yield – improvement by 0.5% 1,037 —

Rental value per sq ft – increase by £1 average 358 —

Impact on valuation 2020 
£’000

Industrial Retail

Yield – improvement by 0.5% 669 300

Rental value per sq ft – increase by £1 average 1,588 1,104

Cost to complete – increased by 1% 200 130

Investment properties under construction are developments which have been valued at 31 December 2021 at fair value by the Directors of 
the Company using the residual method at £9,000,000 (2020: £3,993,000). The residual method of valuation involves estimating the gross 
development value of the property using market-derived capitalisation yields and market-derived future income streams. From this gross 
development value the remaining gross development costs to be incurred are deducted, using market-derived data cost estimates or the actual 
known costs and including cost contingencies for construction risk as appropriate. In addition, a deduction for the anticipated development 
profits yet to be earned is made, taking into account the progress of the development to date in line with key milestones.
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15. INVESTMENTS

Parent Company – shares in Group undertakings
Total

£’000
Cost
At 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 38,021
Disposals (250)
At 31 December 2021 37,771
Adjustments
At 1 January 2020 and 31 December 2020 —

Reversal of provisions for losses —
At 31 December 2021 —
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 37,771
At 31 December 2020 38,021

Amounts due from and to subsidiary companies are listed in notes 18 and 22 and details of all subsidiary companies are listed in note 36. All 
trading subsidiaries operate in the United Kingdom and are wholly owned, with the exception of:

• Road Link (A69) Holdings Limited and its subsidiary Road Link (A69) Limited which is 61.2% owned by Henry Boot Construction Limited;

• Plot 7 East Markham Vale Management Company Limited which is 66.7% owned by, and under board control of, Henry Boot Developments 
Limited;

• Capitol Park Property Services Limited which is 4.6% owned by, and under board control of, Henry Boot Developments Limited; and

• Stonebridge Homes Group Limited and its wholly owned subsidiaries (as indicated in note 36) which is 50% owned by, and under board 
control of (by virtue of majority voting rights), Henry Boot Land Holdings Limited.

They are all incorporated in the United Kingdom. All subsidiary companies have only one class of ordinary issued share capital.

16. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES
2021 2020

Group

Joint 
ventures

£’000
Associates

£’000
Total
£’000

Joint
 ventures

£’000
Associates

£’000
Total

£’000

Cost

At 1 January 5,688 152 5,840 6,567 67 6,634

Share of profit for the year 9,064 (136) 8,928 1,671 85 1,756

Dividends received (2,155) — (2,155) (2,200) — (2,200)

Additions — 2 2 — — —

Disposals (432) (18) (450) (350) — (350)

At 31 December 12,165 — 12,165 5,688 152 5,840

The Group’s share of its joint ventures’ and associates’ aggregated assets, liabilities and results are as follows:

2021 2020

Joint 
ventures

£’000
Associates

£’000
Total
£’000

Joint
 ventures

£’000
Associates

£’000
Total

£’000

Investment property 21,676 — 21,676 12,656 — 12,656

Current assets 25,711 5,692 31,403 16,611 154 16,765

Non-current assets 1 7 8 1 2 3

Total assets 47,388 5,699 53,087 29,268 156 29,424

Current liabilities (32,122) (2,130) (34,252) (20,321) (4) (20,325)

Non-current liabilities (3,101) (3,569) (6,670) (3,259) — (3,259)

Net investment 12,165 — 12,165 5,688 152 5,840
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16. INVESTMENT IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES CONTINUED
2021 2020

Joint 
ventures

£’000
Associates

£’000
Total
£’000

Joint
 ventures

£’000
Associates

£’000
Total

£’000

Revenue 18,944 53 18,997 17,927 85 18,012

Administration and other expenses (15,388) (67) (15,455) (16,198) — (16,198)

Increase in fair value of investment properties 6,970 — 6,970 103 — 103

Operating profit 10,526 (14) 10,512 1,832 85 1,917

Finance costs (375) (121) (496) (185) — (185)

Profit before tax 10,151 (135) 10,016 1,647 85 1,732

Tax (1,087) (1) (1,088) 24 — 24

Share of profits after tax 9,064 (136) 8,928 1,671 85 1,756

Details of the Group’s investments in joint ventures and associates are listed in note 36.

Material joint ventures and associates
The Directors considers Pennine Property Partnership LLP, Montagu 406 Regeneration LLP and Newmarket Lane Holdings Limited (Group) to 
be the only material joint venture or associate they hold an interest in. 

Pennine Property Partnership LLP is a property development joint venture between the Group and Calderdale and Huddersfield NHS Foundation 
Trust, the LLP is incorporated in England and the Group has ownership of 50%. The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method of 
accounting. Montagu 406 Regeneration LLP is a property development joint venture between the Group and The Mayor and Burgesses of the 
London Borough of Enfield. The LLP is incorporated in England and the Group has ownership of 50% of the LLP. The joint venture is accounted 
for using the equity method of accounting. Newmarket Lane Holdings Limited (Group) (henceforth the “NML Group”) is a property development 
joint venture between the Group, two individual shareholders, and Hazeltime Limited. The NML Group includes three legal entities, Newmarket 
Lane Holdings Limited, Newmarket Lane Limited, and Newmarket Lane Management Company Limited. The NML Group is incorporated in 
England, and the Group has ownership of 50% of the NML Group. The joint venture is accounted for using the equity method of accounting.

The table below provides summarised financial information for Pennine Property Partnership LLP, Montagu 406 Regeneration LLP, and 
Newmarket Lane Holdings Limited (Group). The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of Pennine 
Property Partnership LLP, Montagu 406 Regeneration LLP, and Newmarket Lane Holdings Limited (Group), and not the Group’s share of those 
amounts.

Summarised balance sheet
Pennine Property  
Partnership LLP

Montagu 406 
Regeneration LLP

Newmarket Lane Holdings 
Limited  (Group)

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Investment properties (non-current) 17,401 15,045 25,950 7,072 — —

Inventories 141 146 — — 19,050 15,857

Trade and other receivables 138 235 143 — 2,303 120

Cash and cash equivalents 252 475 — — 1,850 1,810

Trade and other payables (4,516) (4,377) (14,454) (7,077) (19,791) (17,831)

Borrowings (non-current) (2,590) (2,568) — — — —

Net assets/(liabilities) 10,826 8,956 11,639 (5) 3,412 (44)

Reconciliation to carrying amount:
Opening net assets 1 January 8,956 10,424 (5) (5) (24) 404

Profit for the period 2,920 710 11,644 — 3,455 (448)

Other distribution (1,050) (2,178) — — (19) —

Closing net assets 10,826 8,956 11,639 (5) 3,412 (44)

Group’s share in % 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%

Group’s share in £ 5,413 4,478 5,820 (3) 1,706 (22)

Carrying amount 5,413 4,478 5,820 (3) 1,706 (22)

Summarised statement of comprehensive income

 
2021
£’000

2020
£’000

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Revenue 752 745 — — 19,435 1,524

Profit for the year 2,920 710 11,644 — 3,455 (448)
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17. CONTRACT ASSETS
2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Construction contracts – Construction segment 2,291 2,051

Construction contracts – Property Investment and Development segment 5,265 11,277

7,556 13,328

Due within one year 7,556 13,328

Due after more than one year — —

7,556 13,328

Amounts relating to construction contracts are balances due from customers under construction contracts that arise when the Group receives 
payments from customers in line with a series of performance related milestones. The Group will previously have recognised a contract asset for 
any work performed but not yet invoiced as conditional to reaching certain agreed milestone. Any amount previously recognised as a contract 
asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which it is invoiced to the customer. 

Contract assets have decreased as the Group has provided fewer construction contract services in the property investment and development 
segment.

There were no significant impairment losses recognised on any contract asset in the reporting period (2020: £nil). 

The Group does not recognise any assets arising from the costs incurred to obtain a contract as the related amortisation period would have 
been less than one year.

18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Group Parent Company

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Trade receivables 69,830 53,269 168 265

Loss allowance (1,269) (691) — —

Prepayments 8,442 4,987 949 891

Amounts owed by joint ventures and associates 27,660 14,661 — —
Amounts owed by Group undertakings — — 203,417 134,484

104,663 72,226 204,534 135,640

Due within one year 91,359 65,032 204,534 135,640

Due after more than one year 13,304 7,194 — —

104,663 72,226 204,534 135,640

Amounts due after more than one year relate to deferred consideration included in trade receivables on inventory sold. Amounts are discounted 
to present value and are due for payment between January 2023 and by June 2023.

Group
Movement in the trade receivables loss allowance

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

At 1 January 691 724

Impairment losses recognised 779 481

Amounts written off as uncollectable (utilisation) (196) (214)

Amounts recovered during the year (5) —

Impairment losses reversed — (300)

At 31 December 1,269 691

The loss allowance as at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 for trade receivables was determined as follows:

2021

Expected  
loss rate  

%

Gross 
carrying  
amount  

£’000

Loss  
allowance 

£’000

0-30 days — 63,405 31

30–60 days 0.6 2,895 18

60–90 days 2.9 548 16

90–120 days 24.2 128 31

120+ days 41.1 2,854 1,173

69,830 1,269
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18. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES CONTINUED
2020

Expected  
loss rate  

%

Gross 
carrying  
amount  

£’000

Loss  
allowance 

£’000

0-30 days 0.8 46,800 381

30–60 days 0.9 2,810 25

60–90 days 4.2 359 15

90–120 days 14.0 114 16

120+ days 8.0 3,186 254

53,269 691

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables of the Group and Parent Company approximates to their fair value.

Parent Company
Amounts owed by Group undertakings include loans of £203.7m (2020: £131.3m) and are repayable on demand, unsecured and are stated net 
of provisions for impairment of £1,500,000 (2020: £1,584,000), of which £3,000 (2020: £3,000) has been provided in the year, £87,000 (2020: 
£166,000) has been recovered in the year and £nil (2020: £3,655,000) was written off. Expected credit losses are based on the assumption that 
repayment of the loan is demanded at the reporting date. Where there are insufficient liquid assets the Parent Company considers the expected 
manner of recovery to measure expected credit losses. This might be a ‘repay over time’ strategy, or a fire sale of less liquid assets. Interest is 
charged annually at 2.85% (2020: 2.85%).

The Parent Company has no significantly impaired trade receivables.

Credit risk
The Group’s principal financial assets are bank balances and cash, and trade and other receivables, which represent the Group’s maximum 
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade receivables. The amounts presented in the Statement of Financial Position are net of 
loss allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the Group’s management based on prior experience and forward-looking assessments of 
the economic environment in accordance with IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and customers.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating 
agencies.

19. DEFERRED TAX
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset where the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and when the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to tax levied by the same tax authority where there is an intention to 
settle the balances on a net basis. The amounts after offsetting are as follows:

Group

Accelerated
capital

allowances
£’000

Property 
revaluations

£’000

Retirement
benefit

obligations
£’000

Other
timing

differences
£’000

Total
£’000

At 1 January 2020 252 — 3,904 382 4,538
Recognised in profit or loss (167) — (69) (49) (285)
Recognised in other comprehensive income — — 3,089 — 3,089
At 31 December 2020 85 — 6,924 333 7,342
Recognised in profit or loss (279) (4,106) 973 (1) (3,413)
Recognised in other comprehensive income — (282) (4,840) — (5,122)
At 31 December 2021 (194) (4,388) 3,057 332 (1,193)
Deferred tax asset — — 3,057 332 3,389
Deferred tax liability (194) (4,388) — — (4,582)
Parent Company
At 1 January 2020 51 — 3,904 300 4,255
Recognised in profit or loss 17 — (69) 55 3
Recognised in other comprehensive income — — 3,089 — 3,089
At 31 December 2020 68 — 6,924 355 7,347
Recognised in profit or loss 36 — 973 6 1,015
Recognised in other comprehensive income — — (4,840) — (4,840)
At 31 December 2021 104 — 3,057 361 3,522

Deferred tax asset 104 — 3,057 361 3,522
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19. DEFERRED TAX CONTINUED 
Deferred tax assets relating to unused tax losses carried forward and deductible temporary differences are recognised if it is probable that they 
can be offset against future taxable profits or existing temporary differences. 

Unrecognised deferred tax assets relating to property revaluations amounted to £nil (2020: £1,596,000). These assets have not been recognised 
as it is probable that in future periods there will be no suitable profits or gains available to the Group against which they may be relieved. There 
are no other significant unrecognised deferred tax assets and liabilities.

In the Spring Budget 2021, the Government announced that from 1 April 2023 the main rate of UK corporation tax rate would increase to 25%. 
This new law was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021. As a result deferred tax balances at the year end have been measured at 25% (2020: 
19%), being the rate at which timing differences are expected to reverse. Management do not expect any significant reversal of deferred tax assets or 
liabilities in the next 12 months.

20. INVENTORIES
2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Property developments in progress 75,161 44,368
Housebuilder land and work in progress 52,464 39,192
Land held for development or sale 47,682 57,898
Options to purchase land 13,558 14,757
Planning promotion agreements 46,431 44,574

235,296 200,789

Within property developments in progress £1,277,000 (2020: £909,000) has been written down and recognised as an expense in the year. 
These costs relate to development projects no longer likely to proceed. Within land held for development or sale, options to purchase land and 
planning promotion agreements £1,170,000 (2020: £1,434,000) has been written down and recognised as an expense in the year. These costs 
relate to land, options and planning promotion agreements where planning permission for development has been refused or is deemed to be 
doubtful.

21. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 
2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Construction contracts – Construction segment 5,033 7,280
Construction contracts – Property Investment and Development segment — 150

5,033 7,430
Due within one year 5,033 7,430

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period
Construction contracts – Construction segment 7,280 9,433
Construction contracts – Property Investment and Development segment 150 —
Revenue recognised from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods
Construction contracts – Construction segment — —
Construction contracts – Property Investment and Development segment — —

Contract liabilities have decreased in the year as the Group invoicing remains more closely aligned with the level of construction of works 
undertaken.
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group Parent Company

2021
£’000

2020 
£’000

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Trade payables 56,420 62,076 1,409 1,255
Social security and other taxes 4,119 4,665 572 371
Accrued expenses 9,441 3,549 1,024 1,616
Deferred income 3,834 4,072 — —
Amounts owed to joint venture and associates 10 711 — —

Amounts owed to Group undertakings — — 83,168 89,868
73,824 75,073 86,173 93,110

Due within one year 72,155 72,727 86,173 93,110

Due after more than one year 1,669 2,346 — —
73,824 75,073 86,173 93,110

The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value.

Amounts due after more than one year include £1,669,000 (2020: £1,873,000) of deferred income and £nil (2020: £473,000) of trade payables. 
Included within deferred income is £1,874,000 relating to an advanced payment from Highways England (2020: £1,987,000). This is being released as 
revenue and interest within the income statement under the terms of the A69 Road Link contract. During the year £445,000 has been recognised as 
revenue and £(332,000) recognised as interest.

Parent Company
Amounts owed to Group undertakings (including loans of £81.1m (2020: £87.5m)) are repayable on demand, unsecured and bear interest at 
2.85% (2020: 2.85%).

23. GOVERNMENT GRANTS
Government grants have been received in relation to the infrastructure of one of the Group’s land promotions and one of the Group’s property 
developments.

Grant income received relating to revenue grants are included within deferred income and released to the Consolidated Statement of 
Comprehensive Income on a systematic basis to match the costs it is intended to compensate. There are no unfulfilled conditions or 
contingencies attached to the grants that have been recognised.

Amounts credited to the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income during the year were £723,000 (2020: £820,000).

Grant income relating to capital grants is included within deferred income until the completion conditions are met; at this point the grant is 
transferred to offset the cost of the asset.

24. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

• To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and have the resources to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for 
other stakeholders; and

• To maximise returns to shareholders by allocating capital across our businesses based on the level of expected return and risk. 

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light 
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of net debt to equity. Net debt is total debt less cash and cash equivalents and at 31 December 2021 
this was £43.5m (2020: net cash £27.0m). Equity comprises all components of equity and at 31 December 2021 this was £355.3m (2020: 
£313.5m).

During 2021 the Group’s strategy, was to maintain the debt to equity ratio below 30% (2020: 30%). This level was chosen to ensure that we can 
access debt relatively easily and inexpensively if required.

In January 2020, the Group concluded negotiations with three banking partners to put in place a £75m facility to replace the £72m facility we 
had in place at 31 December 2019. The renewed facilities commenced on 23 January 2020, with a renewal date of 23 January 2023 and an 
option to extend the facilities by one year, each year, for the next two years occurring on the anniversary of the facility. The renewed facilities, on 
improved terms, maintain covenants on the same basis as the previous facilities. On 19 January 2022 the banks agreed to the Group’s second 
request to extend the facility to 23 January 2025. The Group had drawn £50m of the facility at 31 December 2021 (2020: £nil).

The Group’s secured bank facilities are subject to covenants over loan-to-market value of investment properties, interest cover, EBIT cover, 
gearings and minimum consolidated tangible assets value. The Group operated comfortably within all of its requirements throughout the year 
and continues to do so over forecast periods.

On the 17 December 2021, the Group entered into a Receivables Purchase Agreement with HSBC Invoice Finance (UK) Limited, from which the 
Group can draw up to £25m on the transfer of certain deferred receivables to the bank. No amounts were drawn on the facility at the year end.

The Group’s capital risk management disclosures are consistent with the parent company. 
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25. BORROWINGS
Group Parent Company

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Bank overdrafts — — — 1,421

Bank loans 50,000 9,969 50,000 —

Government loans 2,941 2,941 — —

52,941 12,910 50,000 1,421

Due within one year 52,941 2,941 50,000 1,421

Due after one year — 9,969 — —

52,941 12,910 50,000 1,421

Contractual maturities of borrowings, including future interest, as follows:

On demand or within one year 52,941 3,195 50,000 1,421

In the second year — 9,969 — —

In the third to fifth years inclusive — — — —

52,941 13,164 50,000 1,421

Due within one year 52,941 3,195 50,000 1,421

Due after one year — 9,969 — —
52,941 13,164 50,000 1,421

The weighted average interest rates paid were as follows:
2021

%
2020

%

Bank overdrafts 1.24 1.56

Bank loans – floating rate 1.51 —

Bank loans – floating rate (relating to Stonebridge Homes Limited) 1.98 2.24
Government loans — —

Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand and bank loans are drawn for periods of between one and six months.

Borrowings are recognised at amortised cost. 

Liquidity risk
The Company’s objectives when managing liquidity are:

• To safeguard the Group’s ability to meet expected and unexpected payment obligations at all times; and

• To maximise the Group’s profitability.

Interest on floating rate borrowings is arranged for periods from one to six months. These borrowings are secured by a fixed and floating charge 
over the assets of the Group excluding those of Road Link (A69) Limited, Stonebridge Offices Limited and Stonebridge Homes Limited. 

The Stonebridge Homes Limited revolving loan facility is secured by a specific charge over the freehold property of that company and is 
guaranteed by Henry Boot PLC. On 25 January 2019 the Stonebridge Homes facility was increased to £10,000,000 with full and final settlement 
becoming due on 24 January 2022. On 17 December 2021, the facility was settled in full with Stonebridge Homes now being funded through 
the Henry Boot PLC group facility. 

The Group has a government loan from the Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) held at a fair value of £2,941,000 (2020: £2,941,000) 
(Education Campus) which was issued with a fixed level of interest of £254,000 (2020: £254,000). As a result, the Company has no exposure 
to interest rate changes in relation to this loan. The Company’s exposure to indexation risk may result in an increase in the value of repayments, 
causing the loan to be settled at an earlier date.

The Government loan was received to fund specific residential construction expenditure. 

Repayment of the Education Campus HCA loan commenced upon the occupation of the first dwelling and follows for each occupation 
thereafter until the total contribution sum is repaid in full. Repayments of £nil (2020: £nil) were made during the year. The repayments are 
calculated at £8,587 per residential unit, based on 1,750 units, and are increased in relation to the Land Registry House Price Index (Devon). 
The base figure of £8,587 is reviewed following the occupation of the first 300 dwellings and every 300 dwellings thereafter in addition to every 
second anniversary of the loan agreement date and any date after 2022 following notice served from the HCA. If the HCA is not satisfied that 
the base rate will guarantee repayment of the total contribution sum before the completion of the last residential unit, it has the right to increase 
the base figure accordingly. If the number of residential units with detailed planning permission or reserved matters increases, the base figure is 
revised to reflect the increased number of plots. 

Other borrowings are arranged at floating rates, thus exposing the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

Based on approximate average borrowings during 2021, a 0.5% (2020: 0.5%) change in interest rates, which the Directors consider to be a 
reasonably possible change, would affect profitability before tax by £82,000 (2020: £4,000).

The fair value of the Group’s borrowings is not considered to be materially different from the carrying amounts.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had available £25,000,000 (2020: £75,000,000) undrawn committed borrowing facilities.
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26. PROVISIONS
Land

promotion
£’000

Road
maintenance

£’000
Total

£’000

At 1 January 2020 5,315 1,681 6,996

Additional provisions in year 129 1,209 1,338

Utilisation of provisions (1,508) (898) (2,406)

At 31 December 2020 3,936 1,992 5,928

Included in current liabilities 2,860 1,992 4,852

Included in non-current liabilities 1,076 — 1,076

3,936 1,992 5,928

Additional provisions in year 1,051 1,499 2,550
Utilisation of provisions (570) (1,626) (2,196)
At 31 December 2021 4,417 1,865 6,282
Included in current liabilities 3,562 1,865 5,427
Included in non-current liabilities 855 — 855

4,417 1,865 6,282

The land promotion provision represents management’s best estimate of the Group’s liability to provide infrastructure and service obligations, 
which remain with the Group following the disposal of land. The provision is calculated using the present value of the estimated cash flows 
required to settle the present obligations, pro rata on an acreage allocation basis where disposals occur over a number of phases, such that 
provisions are only made in relation to the land which has been disposed of. Based on a 1.0% change in the discount rate and a 5.0% change in 
the estimated cash outflows, both of which the Directors consider to be a reasonably possible change, land promotion provisions would change 
and affect profitability before tax by £11,000 and £101,000 respectively (2020: £51,000 and £193,000).

The Group maintains rigorous forecasting and budgeting for the infrastructure and services contracts to which our provisions relate. The Group’s 
outstanding obligations are not considered to be ‘onerous’ contracts, as the costs of meeting the obligations are not anticipated to exceed the 
economic benefits expected to be received throughout the life of the developments.

The road maintenance provision represents management’s best estimate of the Group’s liability under a five-year rolling programme for the 
maintenance of the Group’s PFI asset. Based on a 5.0% change in the estimated cash outflows, which the Directors consider to be a reasonably 
possible change, the road maintenance provision would change and affect profitability before tax by £206,000 (2020: £171,000).

Off balance sheet arrangements
The Group is currently undertaking the infrastructure of land promotions at Bridgwater and Cranbrook, spanning 122 and 53 acres respectively 
(2020: 122 and 53). The Group is liable for various planning and infrastructure obligations required to be met under section agreements imposed 
by the local Councils. The Group shares its planning and infrastructure obligations relating to the Cranbrook site with two other parties, the 
Group’s share being 30%. These shared obligations are secured by performance bonds and legal charges. The Group deems the possibility 
of default by the other parties as highly remote. The infrastructure of these developments is anticipated to continue until 2022 and 2025 
respectively, with costs being incurred throughout these periods.

The Group has historically disposed of 117 and 48 acres respectively (2020: 117 and 35), and has subsequently recognised provisions to the 
value of £4,351,000 (2020: £3,845,000), being the Group’s best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligations at the 
reporting date. Subsequent disposals are expected to occur over a number of phases; provisions are made in relation to the land which has 
been disposed of. The present value of the estimated cash flows relating to future disposals, amounting to £617,000 (2020: £1,369,000), has 
therefore not been recognised in these Financial Statements. 

27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Defined contribution pension plan
The Group operates a defined contribution pension plan for all qualifying employees. The plan is administered and managed by Aviva and the 
Group matches member contributions, providing a minimum of 5% (2020: 5%) of salary is paid by the employee, on a pound-for-pound basis 
up to a maximum of 8%.

The total cost charged to income of £2,521,000 (2020: £2,293,000) represents contributions payable to the plan by the Group. 

Defined benefit pension scheme
The Group sponsors a funded defined benefit pension scheme in the UK. The scheme is administered within a Trust which is legally separate 
from the Group. Trustees are appointed by both the Group and the scheme’s membership and act in the interest of the scheme and all relevant 
stakeholders, including the members and the Group employers. The Trustees are also responsible for the investment policy for the scheme’s assets.
Existing scheme members accrued benefits up until 19 March 2021 at which point the scheme closed to future accrual. To 19 March 2021 
members accrued an annual pension of either 1/45th or 1/60th of final pensionable salary for each year of pensionable service. Increases in 
pensionable salary were limited to 1% per annum. Once in payment, pensions increase in line with inflation. The scheme also provides a two-
thirds spouse’s pension on the death of a member.
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27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED

Up to the date of closure active members of the scheme paid contributions at the rate of either 5% or 7% of pensionable salary and the Group 
employers paid the balance of the cost as determined by regular actuarial valuations. The Trustees are required to use prudent assumptions to 
value the liabilities and costs of the scheme, whereas the accounting assumptions must be best estimates.

The Group has not recognised any obligation under a minimum funding requirement as it is entitled to a refund of any residual assets once all 
members have left the scheme.

The scheme poses a number of risks to the Group. These include:

Investment risk
The present value of obligations is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to high quality corporate bond yields. If the return on 
the scheme’s assets is below this rate the scheme deficit will increase.

Interest rate risk
A decrease in the yield on high-quality corporate bonds will reduce the discount rate and thus increase the value placed on the scheme’s 
liabilities. However, this would be partially offset by an increase in the value of the scheme’s bond investments.

Inflation risk
The present value of the liabilities is calculated by reference to a best estimate of future inflation. If inflation turns out to be higher than this 
estimate then the deficit will increase.

Longevity risk
The present value of the liabilities is calculated using a best estimate of the life expectancy of scheme members. An increase in life expectancies 
will increase the scheme’s liabilities.

A formal actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31 December 2018. The results of that valuation have been projected to 31 December 2021 
by a qualified independent actuary and the next formal valuation as at 31 December 2021 is currently in progress. The figures in the following 
disclosure were measured using the projected unit method.  The main financial assumptions used in the valuation of the liabilities of the scheme 
under IAS 19 are:

2021
%

2020
%

Retail Prices Index (RPI) 3.30 2.80

Consumer Prices Index (CPI) 2.70 2.20

Pensionable salary increases — 1.00

Rate in increase to pensions in payment liable for Limited Price Indexation (LPI) 2.70 2.20

Revaluation of deferred pensions 2.70 2.20

Liabilities discount rate 2.00 1.40

Mortality assumptions
2021

Years
2020
Years

Retiring today (aged 65)
Male 21.8 21.8

Female 24.1 24.1

Retiring in 20 years (currently aged 45)
Male 22.8 22.8

Female 25.3 25.3

The mortality assumptions adopted are the Self Administered Pension Schemes (SAPS) tables with allowance for future improvements in line 
with Continuous Mortality Investigation (CMI) 2020 with an annual improvement of 1% per annum.

The sensitivities regarding the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme liabilities are set out below:

Impact on scheme liabilities

Change in 
assumption

Increase in 
assumption

Decrease in 
assumption

Rate of inflation 0.25% Increase by 3.0% Decrease by 3.0%

Liabilities discount rate 0.25% Decrease by 4.0% Increase by 4.3%

Rate of mortality 1 year Increase by 4.5% Decrease by 4.2%
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27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED
Amounts recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income in respect of the scheme are as follows:

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Service cost:

Current service cost 180 795

Ongoing scheme expenses 502 576

Past service cost 2,074 150

Net interest expense 505 433

Pension protection fund 146 206

Pension expenses recognised in profit or loss 3,407 2,160

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability:

Return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense) (13,239) (13,898)

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions (277) 2,265

Actuarial (gain)/loss arising from changes in financial assumptions (9,781) 27,346

Actuarial (gain)/loss recognised in other comprehensive income (23,297) 15,713

Total (19,890) 17,873

The amount included in the Statement of Financial Position arising from the Group’s obligations in respect of the scheme is as follows:

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Present value of scheme obligations 221,660 235,143

Fair value of scheme assets (209,432) (198,698)

12,228 36,445

This amount is presented in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Non-current liabilities 12,228 36,445

Movements in the present value of scheme obligations in the year were as follows:

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

At 1 January 235,143 208,318

Current service cost 180 795

Interest on obligation 4,201 4,098

Actuarial losses (10,058) 29,610

Past service cost 2,074 150

Benefits paid (9,880) (7,828)

At 31 December 221,660 235,143
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27. RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS CONTINUED
Movements in the fair value of scheme assets in the year were as follows:

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

At 1 January 198,698 185,353

Interest income 3,696 3,665

Actuarial gains on scheme assets 13,239 13,898

Employer contributions 4,181 4,186

Benefits paid (9,880) (7,828)

Ongoing scheme expenses (502) (576)

At 31 December 209,432 198,698

The categories of plan assets are as follows:

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Quoted investments, including pooled diversified growth funds: 

 Equity 47,796 39,934

 Diversified credit funds 63,641 62,892

 Cash and net current assets 3,222 2,826

Unquoted investments:

 Direct lending 22,536 28,521

    Liability driven investment 34,369 31,626

 Collateralised loan obligations — 21,608

    Infrastructure 20,101 —

 Special situations 17,767 11,291

At 31 December 209,432 198,698

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 16 years (2020: 17 years). 

The current estimated amount of total contributions expected to be paid to the scheme during the 2022 financial year is £4,300,000, being 
£4,300,000 payable by the Group and £nil payable by scheme members. 

The Company’s level of recovery plan funding to the scheme is £3,550,000 per annum and will increase by £100,000 per annum until the next 
triennial valuation. In addition to this, the Company contributes a further £260,000 per annum towards the administration expenses of the 
scheme.
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on consolidation and are 
disclosed below:

Parent Company
2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Management charges receivable 2,456 1,963

Interest receivable 4,544 3,377

Interest payable (1,753) (1,802)

Rents payable (158) (156)
Recharge of expenses 39 51

Transactions between the Company and its remaining related parties are as follows:

Purchases of goods and services
2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Close family members of key management personnel (amounts paid for IT services) — 49

Related companies of key management personnel (amounts paid for Non-executive Director services) 48 43

Amounts owing by related parties (note 18) or to related parties (note 22) are unsecured, repayable on demand and will be settled in cash. No 
guarantees have been given or received. No significant provisions have been made for impaired receivables in respect of the amounts owed by 
related parties. Other than as disclosed above and in note 16, there are no further related party transactions with joint ventures and associates.

Remuneration of key management personnel
The key management personnel of the Group are the Board of Directors and members of the Executive Committee, as presented on pages 
76 to 79. They are responsible for making all of the strategic decisions of the Group and its subsidiaries, as detailed on pages 26 and 29. The 
remuneration of the Board of Directors is set out in the Remuneration Report on pages 116 to 135. The remuneration of the relevant eight (2020: 
four) members of the Senior Management team is set out below, in aggregate, for each of the categories specified in IAS 24 ‘Related Party 
Disclosures’. 

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

Short-term employee benefits 1,976 1,271

Post-employment benefits 92 19

Share-based payments 23 203

2,091 1,493
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29. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised, allotted,      
issued and fully paid

2021
£’000

2020
£’000

400,000 5.25% cumulative preference shares of £1 each (2020: 400,000) 400 400

133,323,967 ordinary shares of 10p each (2020: 133,181,537) 13,332 13,318

13,732 13,718

The Company has one class of ordinary share which carries no rights to fixed income, but which entitles the holder thereof to receive notice and 
attend and vote at general meetings or appoint a proxy to attend on their behalf. During the year 142,430 ordinary shares (2020: 8,935) were 
issued in satisfaction of share option exercises.

Subject to Board approval, the preference shares carry the right to a cumulative preferential dividend payable half yearly at the rate of 5.25% 
per annum. They also carry a right, in priority to the ordinary equity, on a return of assets on a winding-up or reduction of capital, to repayment 
of capital, together with the arrears of any preferential dividend. With the exception of any resolution proposed to directly affect the rights or 
privileges of the holders of the preference shares, the holders thereof are not entitled to receive notice of, be present or vote at any general 
meeting of the Company.

Share-based payments
The Company operates the following share-based payment arrangements:

(i) The Henry Boot 2010 Sharesave Plan
This savings-related share option plan was approved by shareholders in 2010 and is HMRC approved. Grants of options to participating 
employees were made on 24 October 2017 at a price of 270.0p at a discount of 10%, on 4 October 2018 at a price of 262.0p at a discount 
of 5.8%, on 3 October 2019 at a price of 224.0p at a discount of 9.7%, on 5 October 2020 at a price of 237.0p at a discount of 6.0% and 
on 15 October 2021 at a price of 225.0p at a discount of 20.5%. These become exercisable for a six-month period from 1 December 2021, 
1 December 2022, 1 December 2023 and 1 December 2024 respectively. There are no performance criteria attached to the exercise of these 
options which are normally capable of exercise up to six months after the third anniversary of the Sharesave contract commencement date. The 
right to exercise options terminates if a participating employee leaves the Group, subject to certain exceptions.

2020
Options

outstanding at 
1 January 

2020
Options
granted

Options
lapsed

Options
exercised

Options
outstanding at
31 December

2020

October 2017 grant 246,009 — (66,456) — 179,553
October 2018 grant 113,841 — (27,342) — 86,499
October 2019 grant 863,490 — (124,794) (3,935) 734,761
October 2020 grant — 312,039 — — 312,039
Weighted average exercise price 237p 237p 243p 224p 236p

2021
Options

outstanding at
1 January 

2021
Options
granted

Options
lapsed

Options
exercised

Options
outstanding at
31 December

2021

October 2017 grant 179,553 — (84,366) (95,187) —
October 2018 grant 86,499 — (13,050) (17,806) 55,643
October 2019 grant 734,761 — (104,709) (5,712) 624,340
October 2020 grant 312,039 — (102,825) — 209,214
October 2021 grant — 444,640 (4,000) — 440,640
Weighted average exercise price 236p 225p 243p 267p 228p

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was 278.10p (2020: 260.50p).
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29. SHARE CAPITAL CONTINUED 

(ii) The Henry Boot 2015 Long-Term Incentive Plan

This plan was approved by shareholders at an AGM held on 21 May 2015. Details of the plan and the vesting requirements are also set out in 
the Directors’ Remuneration Policy which is also available to view on the website. 

In respect of (ii) above, the aggregate total of movements in share options granted and awards of shares is as follows:

2021
Number

2020
Number

Share options granted at 1 January 1,078,207 1,115,063

Lapses of share options in year (177,367) (176,301)

Awards of shares in year (53,085) (311,640)

Share options granted in year 517,642 451,085

Share options granted at 31 December 1,365,397 1,078,207

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was 278.00p (2020:  235.00p). The weighted 
average exercise price of all share options issued in the scheme is nil.

(iii) The Henry Boot PLC 2010 Approved Company Share Option Plan 
This plan, more commonly known as a CSOP, was approved by shareholders in 2010 and is HMRC approved. Any full-time Director or 
employee (full-time or part-time) is eligible to participate at the discretion of the Remuneration Committee of the Board. Options are granted by 
deed with no consideration payable by the participant. The aggregate subscription price at the date of grant of all outstanding options granted 
to any one participant under the plan and any other HMRC approved plan operated by the Company (but excluding options granted under 
any savings-related share option plan) must not exceed £30,000. The aggregate market value at the date of grant of ordinary share options 
which may be granted to any one participant in any one financial year of the Company shall not normally exceed two times the amount of a 
participant’s remuneration for that financial year. The Remuneration Committee may impose objective conditions as to the performance of the 
Group which must normally be satisfied before options can be exercised. Options are normally exercisable only within the period of three to ten 
years after the date of grant. The right to exercise options generally terminates if a participant leaves the Group, subject to certain exceptions. 
The first grant of options under the plan was made to certain senior employees (none of whom at the time were Directors of Group companies) 
on 17 May 2011 at an option price of 121.5p. The second grant of options under the plan was made to certain senior employees (none of 
whom at the time were Directors of Group companies) on 1 October 2014 at an option price of 191.0p. The third grant of options under the 
plan was made to certain senior employees (none of whom at the time were Directors of Group companies) on 6 October 2017 at an option 
price of 298.9p. The fourth grant of options under the plan was made to certain employees (two of whom at the time were Directors of Group 
companies) on 14 September 2018 at an option price of 291.0p. The fifth grant of options under the plan was made to certain employees (two 
of whom at the time were Directors of Group companies) on 3 October 2019 at an option price of 249.0p. The sixth grant of options under the 
plan was made to certain employees (none of whom at the time were Directors of Group companies) on 5 October 2020 at an option price 
of 263.0p. The seventh grant of options under the plan was made to certain employees (none of whom at the time were Directors of Group 

companies) on 29 September 2021 at an option price of 281.0p. There were no performance conditions imposed on either of these grants. 

2020
Options

outstanding at 
1 January

 2020
Options
granted

Options
lapsed

Options
exercised

Options 
outstanding at 
31 December

2020

May 2011 grant 10,000 — — (5,000) 5,000
October 2014 grant 15,000 — — — 15,000
October 2017 grant 134,690 — — (4,183) 130,507
September 2018 grant 269,425 — — (5,860) 263,565
October 2019 grant 444,838 — — (7,432) 437,406
October 2020 grant — 416,316 — — 416,316
Weighted average exercise price 267p 263p 275p 112p 266p
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29. SHARE CAPITAL CONTINUED 

2021
Options

outstanding at 
1 January 

2021
Options
granted

Options
lapsed

Options
exercised

Options 
outstanding at 
31 December

2021

May 2011 grant 5,000 — — (5,000) —
October 2014 grant 15,000 — — (5,000) 10,000
October 2017 grant 130,507 — (34,298) — 96,209
September 2018 grant 263,565 — (43,396) — 220,169
October 2019 grant 437,406 — (88,779) (8,420) 340,207
October 2020 grant 416,316 — (65,847) (566) 349,903
September 2021 grant — 413,230 (8,890) — 404,340
Weighted average exercise price 266p 281p 269p 198p 271p

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was 274.80p (2020: 253.00p).

Fair value
Fair value is measured by a Monte Carlo pricing model using the following assumptions:

Weighted 
average 

exercise price
Weighted average 

share price
Expected  

volatility Expected life Risk-free rate
Expected  

dividend yield

LTIP Nil 241.0p to 294.0p 29.37% to 36.57% 3 years 0.00% to 0.94% 2.14% to 3.24%

CSOP 2011 121.5p 121.5p 41.47% 3 years 1.67% 5.02%

CSOP 2014 191.0p 191.0p 31.17% 3 years 1.23% 3.16%

CSOP 2017 298.9p 309.0p 30.37% 3 years 0.51% 3.02%

CSOP 2018 291.0p 291.0p 29.28% 3 years 0.91% 2.90%

CSOP 2019 249.0p 249.0p 29.25% 3 years 0.28% 3.24%

CSOP 2020 263.0p 263.0p 38.07% 3 years 0.00% 2.61%

CSOP 2021 281.0p 281.0p 38.60% 3 years 0.41% 2.49%
Sharesave 2014 172.0p 181.0p 31.45% 3 years 0.82% 3.16%

Sharesave 2017 270.0p 300.0p 30.30% 3 years 0.51% 3.02%

Sharesave 2018 262.0p 278.0p 29.53% 3 years 0.99% 2.90%

Sharesave 2019 224.0p 248.0p 29.25% 3 years 0.28% 3.24%

Sharesave 2020 237.0p 263.0p 38.07% 3 years 0.00% 2.61%

Sharesave 2021 225.0p 2.83.0p 38.60% 3 years 0.58% 2.49%

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of continuously compounded share returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share prices 
over the last three years.

The weighted average fair value of share options granted during the year was 92.71p (2020:  76.64p).

Expense recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
2021
£’000

2020
£’000

The total expense recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 
arising from share-based payment transactions 969 975

The total expense recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income arose solely from equity-settled share-based payment 
transactions.
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30. RESERVES
Other

Group

Property
revaluation

£’000

Retained
earnings

£’000

Capital
redemption

£’000

Share
premium

£’000
Capital
£’000

Total
other

£’000

At 1 January 2020 2,993 293,593 271 5,910 209 6,390

Profit for the year — 11,921 — — — —

Dividends paid — (4,664) — — — —

Proceeds from shares issued — — — 14 — 14
Decrease in fair value of group occupied 
property (651) — — — — —

Arising on employee share schemes — 288 — — — —
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension 
scheme — (15,713) — — — —

Deferred tax on actuarial loss — 3,089 — — — —

At 31 December 2020 2,342 288,514 271 5,924 209 6,404

Profit for the year — 28,160 — — — —
Dividends paid — (7,620) — — — —
Proceeds from shares issued — — — 340 — 340

Arising on employee share schemes — 837 — — — —
Deferred tax on revaluation surplus (282) — — — — —
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension 
scheme — 23,297 — — — —
Deferred tax on actuarial gain — (4,840) — — — —
At 31 December 2021 2,060 328348 271 6,264 209 6,744

Other

Parent Company

Retained 
earnings 

£’000

Capital 
redemption 

£’000

Share 
premium 

£’000
Capital 
£’000

Investment 
revaluation 

£’000

Total 
other 

£’000

At 1 January 2020 78,390 271 5,910 211 1,135 7,527

Profit for the year 552 — — — — —

Dividends paid (4,664) — — — — —

Premium arising from shares issued — — 14 — — 14
Arising on employee share schemes (297) — — — — —

Unrecognised actuarial loss (15,713) — — — — —

Deferred tax on actuarial loss 3,089 — — — — —

At 31 December 2020 61,357 271 5,924 211 1,135 7,541

Profit for the year 8,938 — — — — —
Dividends paid (7,620) — — — — —
Premium arising from shares issued — — 340 — — 340
Arising on employee share schemes 282 — — — — —
Unrecognised actuarial loss 23,297 — — — — —
Deferred tax on actuarial loss (4,840) — — — — —
At 31 December 2021 81,414 271 6,264 211 1,135 7,881
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30. RESERVES CONTINUED

Property revaluation reserve
The property revaluation reserve represents the unrealised surpluses arising on revaluation of the Group occupied land and buildings and is not 
available for distribution until realised on disposal.

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represent the accumulated profits and losses of the Group. This reserve is distributable to the extent it does not arise from 
revaluation gains.

Capital redemption reserve
The capital redemption reserve represents the purchase and cancellation by the Company of its own shares and comprises the aggregate 
nominal value of all the ordinary shares repurchased and cancelled. This reserve in not distributable.

Share premium reserve
The share premium reserve represents the difference between the sums received from the issue of shares and their nominal value net of share 
issue expenses. This reserve is not distributable.

Capital reserve
The capital reserve represents realised profits arising on the disposal of investments and is available for distribution.

Investment revaluation reserve
This reserve was carried forward from previous accounting framework, and represents accumulated unrealised revaluation gains. This is 
distributable only when the related investment in subsidiaries are sold or impaired.

31. COST OF SHARES HELD BY THE ESOP TRUST
2021
£’000

2020
£’000

At 1 January 1,176 1,248

Additions — 615

Disposals (132) (687)

At 31 December 1,044 1,176

Quoted investments represent own shares held by the Henry Boot PLC Employee Trust as an ESOP to provide an incentive to greater ownership 
of shares in the Company by its employees. 

At 31 December 2021, the Trustee held 422,489 shares (2020: 475,574 shares) with a cost of £1,044,311 (2020: £1,175,526) and a market value 
of £1,187,195 (2020: £1,213,715). All of these shares were committed to satisfy existing grants by the Company under the Henry Boot PLC 2015 
Long-Term Incentive Plan. In accordance with IAS 32, these shares are deducted from shareholders’ funds. Under the terms of the Trust, the 
Trustee has waived all dividends on the shares it holds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

32. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Group Parent Company

2021
£’000

2020 
£’000

2021
£’000

Restated1 

2020
£’000

Profit before tax 35,142 17,079 7,211 (162)

Adjustments for:

Amortisation of PFI asset 11 602 570 — —

Goodwill impairment 11 203 2,218 — —
Depreciation and impairment of property, plant and 
equipment 12 3,819 3,585 144 203

Depreciation of right-of-use assets 13 598 987 53 56

Revaluation increase in investment properties 14 (7,972) (1,266) — —

Amortisation of capitalised letting fees 3 41 30 — —

Share-based payment expense 4 968 975 413 391

Pension scheme credit (920) (2,233) (920) (2,233)

Movements on provision against loans to subsidiaries — — (84) 3,818

Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment 3 (16) (85) — —

Profit on disposal of equipment held for hire 3 (981) (854) — —

(Profit)/Loss on disposal of right-of-use assets 3 — 89 74 3

Profit/(loss) on disposal of investment properties (1,340) 95 — —

Gain on disposal of joint ventures and subsidiaries — (7,426) — —

Finance income 5 (724) (721) (4,544) (3,666)

Dividends received from subsidiaries — — (14,530) (7,897)

Finance costs 6 1,155 1,117 2,275 2,172

Share of profit of joint ventures and associates 16 (8,928) (1,756) — —

Operating cash flows before movements in 

equipment held for hire 21,646 12,404 (9,908) (7,315)

Purchase of equipment held for hire 12 (5,952) (2,201) — —

Proceeds on disposal of equipment held for hire 1,159 1,159 — —

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 16,854 11,362 (9,908) (7,315)

Increase in inventories (36,025) (31,285) — —

(Increase)/decrease in receivables (22,643) 39,800 4,677 (1,221)

Decrease in contract assets 5,772 5,757 — —

Increase/(decrease) in payables and provisions (226) (2,052) (3,806) 6,174

Decrease in contract liabilities (2,397) (2,446) — —
Cash generated from operations (38,665) 21,136 (9,037) (2,362)

Net (debt)/cash is an alternative performance measure used by the Group and comprises the following:

Analysis of net (debt)/cash:
Cash and cash equivalents 11,116 42,125 2,691 31,615

Bank overdrafts 25 — — — (1,421)

Net cash and cash equivalents 11,116 42,125 2,691 30,194

Bank loans 25 (50,000) (9,969) (50,000) —

Lease liabilities 13 (1,660) (2,216) (78) (140)

Government loans 25 (2,941) (2,941) — —

Net (debt)/cash (43,485) 26,999 (47,387) 30,054

1 See ‘Prior year restatement - parent’ on page 156.
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33. GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES
The Parent Company has guaranteed the performance of certain contracts entered into by Group undertakings in the ordinary course of 
business. These guarantees are impracticable to quantify. 

The Parent Company has given cross guarantees to certain of the Group’s bankers and bondsmen in respect of facilities available to Group 
undertakings in the normal course of business. At the year end amounts guaranteed against these facilities were £50,000,000 and £20,528,000 
respectively.

In the opinion of the Directors, no loss is expected to arise in connection with these matters.

34. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
Since the balance sheet date the Group has proposed a final dividend for 2021, further information can be found in note 10, and made an initial 
drawdown of £15.2m on the new £25.0m HSBC receivables purchase facility.  

There were no other significant events since the balance sheet date which may have a material effect on the financial position or performance of 
the Group.

35. DISPOSALS OF JOINT VENTURES AND SUBSIDIARIES
The Group completed on two disposals in the prior year:

a) Starfish Commercial Ltd
On 14 September 2020 the Group, through its subsidiary Henry Boot Construction Limited, placed its wholly owned subsidiary Starfish 
Commercial Ltd into creditors voluntary liquidation.

2020
£’000

Sales proceeds —
Book value of net liabilities 1,262
Sales costs —
Profit on disposal 1,262

b) Ansty Developments LLP
On 12 November 2020 the Group, through its subsidiary Hallam Land Management Limited, disposed of its interest in Ansty Developments LLP 
for a total consideration of £6,250,000. 

2020
£’000

Sales proceeds 6,250
Book value of net assets —
Sales costs (86)
Profit on disposal 6,164
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

36. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION – SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, all of which are incorporated in England (unless otherwise stated) and are 
either consolidated or equity accounted in the Group Financial Statements at 31 December 2021, are as follows:

Subsidiary name
Proportion of 

ownership
Direct or 
indirect Activity

Airport Business Park Southend Management Limited2 1.8% Indirect Management company

Banner Plant Limited 100% Direct Plant Hire
Butterfield Quad Management Company Limited2 12.5% Indirect Management company
Butterfield Quad 2 Management Company Limited 100% Indirect Management company

Capitol Park Property Services Limited2 4.6% Indirect Management company

Chocolate Works York Management Company Limited 100% Indirect Management company

Comstock (Kilmarnock) Ltd. 100% Indirect Land promotion

First National Housing Trust Limited 100% Direct Property investment

Glasgowend Limited 100% Direct Inactive

Hallam Land Management Limited 100% Direct Land promotion

HB Island Limited 100% Direct Property development

HBGP Limited 100% Direct Property development

HBD City Court Limited 100% Indirect Property investment and development

HBD Summerhill Limited 100% Indirect Property investment and development

Henry Boot Biddenham Limited 100% Direct Land promotion

Henry Boot Construction Limited 100% Direct Construction

Henry Boot Contracting Limited 100% Direct Inactive

Henry Boot Developments Limited 100% Direct Property investment and development

Henry Boot Cornwall House Limited 100% Indirect Inactive

Henry Boot Estates Limited 100% Direct Property investment

Henry Boot Investments 1 Limited 100% Indirect Property development

Henry Boot Inner City Limited 100% Direct Inactive

Henry Boot ‘K’ Limited 100% Indirect Property investment and development

Henry Boot Land Holdings Limited 100% Direct Holding company

Henry Boot (Launceston) Limited 100% Direct Land promotion

Henry Boot Leasing Limited 100% Direct Motor vehicle leasing to Group companies

Henry Boot (Manchester) Limited 100% Direct Property development

Henry Boot Nottingham Limited 100% Indirect Inactive

Henry Boot Projects Limited 100% Direct Inactive

Henry Boot Swindon Limited 100% Direct Inactive

Henry Boot Tamworth Limited 100% Indirect Property investment and development

Henry Boot Wentworth Limited 100% Direct Property development 

IAMP Management Company Limited 100% Indirect Management company

Investments (North West) Limited 100% Indirect Property development

Marboot Centregate Ltd 100% Indirect Property investment

Marboot Centregate 2 Limited 100% Indirect Property investment

Moore Street Securities Limited 100% Direct Employee benefit trust

Plot 7 East Markham Vale Management Company Limited 66.7% Indirect Management company

Road Link (A69) Holdings Limited 61.2% Indirect Holding company

Road Link (A69) Limited 61.2% Indirect PFI road maintenance

St John’s Manchester Limited 100% Indirect Property development
Saltwoodend Limited 100% Indirect Inactive
SJ Manchester Limited Partnership 100% Indirect Property development

SJM GP Limited 100% Indirect Property development

SJM (Nominee) Limited 100% Indirect Property development

Stonebridge Homes Group Limited1 50% Indirect Holding company

Stonebridge Homes Limited1 50% Indirect Property development

Stonebridge Offices Limited1 50% Indirect Property investment

Winter Ground Limited 100% Indirect Property development

1 Stonebridge related entities are included as subsidiaries due to the Group’s additional voting rights, having two of the three director appointments.

2 Subsidiary by virtue of management control
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3 6. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION – SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES CONTINUED

Joint ventures and associates
Proportion of 

ownership
Direct or 
indirect Activity

Aytoun Street Developments Limited 50% Indirect Property development

Bigmouth Manchester Limited 50% Indirect Property development

Cognito Oak LLP 50% Indirect Property development

Crimea Land Mansfield LLP 50% Indirect Land promotion

HBB Preston East Ltd 50% Indirect Property development

HBB Roman Way Limited 50% Indirect Property development

Henry Boot Barnfield Limited 50% Indirect Property development

I-Prop Developments Limited 50% Indirect Inactive

Island Site Limited Partnership 50% Indirect Property development

Island Site (General Partner) Limited 50% Indirect Property development

Island Site (Nominee) Limited 50% Indirect Property development

Kirklees Henry Boot Partnership Limited 50% Indirect Inactive

Montagu 406 Regeneration LLP 50% Indirect Property investment

MVNE LLP 50% Indirect Property development

Newmarket Lane Holding Limited 50% Indirect Property development

Newmarket Lane Limited 50% Indirect Property development

Newmarket Lane Management Company Limited 33% Indirect Management company

Pennine Property Partnership LLP 50% Indirect Property investment and development

Rainham Holdco SARL 20% Indirect Property investment and development

Road Link Limited 37.6% Indirect Inactive

The address of the registered office of all subsidiaries, joint venture and associates is the same as the Parent Company, with the exception of:

Road Link Limited, Road Link (A69) Limited and Road Link (A69) Holdings Limited whose registered office is Stocksfield Hall, Stocksfield, 
Northumberland, NE43 7TN.

Comstock (Kilmarnock) Ltd. whose registered office is 48 St. Vincent Street, Glasgow, G2 5HS.

Henry Boot Barnfield Limited, HBB Roman Way Limited and HBB Preston East Limited whose registered office is 8 Kenyon Road, Lomeshaye 
Industrial Estate, Nelson, Lancashire, England, BB9 5SP.

Kirklees Henry Boot Partnership Limited whose registered office is Legal Services, 2nd Floor Civic Centre 3, Huddersfield, West Yorkshire, 
HD1 2WZ.

Cognito Oak LLP whose registered office is Union Plaza (6th Floor), 1 Union Wynd, Aberdeen, Scotland, AB10 1DQ.

Island Site Limited Partnership whose registered office is Guardsman Tony Downes House, 5 Manchester Road, Droylsden, Tameside, M43 6SF.

Crimea Land Mansfield LLP whose registered office is C/O Harworth Group, Advantage House Poplar Way, Catcliffe, Rotherham, S60 5TR, 
United Kingdom.

Rainham Holdco SARL whose registered office is 1 Rue Isaac, Newton, L-2242, Luxembourg.

Residents Management Companies
The companies listed below are Residents Management Companies (RMCs). All RMCs are companies limited by guarantee without share capital 
(unless otherwise stated) and incorporated in the UK. The capital, reserves and profit or loss for the year has not been stated for these RMCs 
as beneficial interest in any assets or liabilities of these companies is held by the residents. These companies have not been included in the 
consolidated accounts, are temporary members of the Group and will be handed over to residents in due course. The registered office of each 
RMC is 1 Featherbank Court, Horsforth, Leeds, LS18 4QF.

RMCs controlled by the Group:

Woodside Park Newlay Estate Management Company Limited, Fox Valley Management Company Limited1, Moorlands Cleckheaton 
Management Company Limited, Brookfield Garth Hampsthwaite Management Company Limited, Kingsley Road Harrogate Management 
Company Limited, Weyland Road Management Company Limited, Willow Crest Cawood Management Company Limited, The Willows Whinney 
Lane Management Company Limited, Victoria Gardens (Headingley) Management Company Ltd1, Derry Hill Menston Management Company 
Limited and Hawbank Field Skipton Management Company Limited.

1. Company limited by share capital
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

THIS DOCUMENT IS IMPORTANT and requires your immediate 
attention. If you are in any doubt about the action you should take, 
you should immediately consult your stockbroker, bank manager, 
solicitor, accountant or other independent professional adviser 
authorised under the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000. If you 
have sold or otherwise transferred all your shares in Henry Boot PLC, 
please forward this document and the accompanying Form of Proxy 
to the person through whom the sale or transfer was effected, for 
transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

The Board of Henry Boot PLC considers all of the proposed 
resolutions to be in the best interests of shareholders as a whole and 
accordingly recommends that shareholders vote in favour of all the 
resolutions proposed.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting (AGM) of 
Henry Boot PLC (Company) will be held at DoubleTree by Hilton  
Hotel Sheffield Park, Chesterfield Road South, Sheffield, S8 8BW  
on Thursday 26 May 2022 at 12.30pm, for the following purposes:

To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolutions, which  
will be proposed as ordinary resolutions of the Company. 

RESOLUTION 1
To receive the Directors’ Report, Auditors’ Report, Strategic Report 
and the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

RESOLUTION 2
To declare a final dividend of 3.63p per ordinary share.

RESOLUTION 3
To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report (other than the part 
containing the Directors’ Remuneration Policy) for the year ended  
31 December 2021.

RESOLUTION 4
To reappoint Timothy Roberts as a Director of the Company.

RESOLUTION 5
To reappoint Darren Littlewood as a Director of the Company.

RESOLUTION 6
To reappoint Joanne Lake as a Director of the Company.

RESOLUTION 7
To reappoint James Sykes as a Director of the Company.

RESOLUTION 8
To reappoint Peter Mawson as a Director of the Company.

RESOLUTION 9
To reappoint Gerald Jennings as a Director of the Company.

RESOLUTION 10
To reappoint Ernst & Young LLP as auditors of the Company.

RESOLUTION 11
To authorise the Audit and Risk Committee to fix the auditors’ 
remuneration.

RESOLUTION 12
THAT pursuant to Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006, the 
Directors be and are generally and unconditionally authorised to allot 
shares in the Company or to grant rights to subscribe for or to convert 
any security into shares in the Company up to an aggregate nominal 
amount of £4,446,152, provided that (unless previously revoked, 
varied or renewed) this authority shall expire on 25 August 2023 or at 
the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company after the passing of 
this resolution, whichever is the earlier, save that the Company may 
make an offer or agreement before this authority expires which would 
or might require shares to be allotted or rights to subscribe for or 
to convert any security into shares to be granted after this authority 
expires and the Directors may allot shares or grant such rights 
pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if this authority had not 
expired. This authority is in substitution for all existing authorities under 
Section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (which, to the extent unused 
at the date of this resolution, are revoked with immediate effect).

To consider and if thought fit, pass the following resolutions, which will 
be proposed as special resolutions of the Company.

RESOLUTION 13
THAT subject to the passing of Resolution 12 and pursuant to Section 
570 of the Companies Act 2006, the Directors be and are generally 
empowered to allot equity securities (within the meaning of Section 
560 of the Companies Act 2006) for cash pursuant to the authority 
granted by Resolution 12 as if Section 561(1) of the Companies Act 
2006 did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power 
shall be limited to the allotment of equity securities:

a. in connection with an offer of equity securities (whether by way of 
a rights issue, open offer or otherwise):

ii. to holders of ordinary shares in the capital of the Company in 
proportion (as nearly as practicable) to the respective numbers 
of ordinary shares held by them; and

iii. to holders of other equity securities in the capital of the 
Company, as required by the rights of those securities or, 
subject to such rights, as the Directors otherwise consider 
necessary,

but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors 
may deem necessary or expedient in relation to treasury shares, 
fractional entitlements, record dates or any legal or practical problems 
under the laws of any territory or the requirements of any regulatory 
body or stock exchange; and

b. otherwise than pursuant to paragraph a. of this resolution, up to 
an aggregate nominal amount of £666,922,

and (unless previously revoked, varied or renewed) this power shall 
expire on 25 August 2023 or at the conclusion of the next AGM of the 
Company after the passing of this resolution, whichever is the earlier, 
save that the Company may make an offer or agreement before this 
power expires which would or might require equity securities to be 
allotted for cash after this power expires and the Directors may allot 
equity securities for cash pursuant to any such offer or agreement as if 
this power had not expired. This power is in substitution for all existing 
powers under Section 570 of the Companies Act 2006 (which, to 
the extent unused at the date of this resolution, are revoked with 
immediate effect).
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RESOLUTION 14
THAT pursuant to Section 701 of the Companies Act 2006, the 
Company be and is hereby generally and unconditionally authorised to 
make market purchases (within the meaning of Section 693(4) of the 
Companies Act 2006) of ordinary shares of 10p each in the capital of 
the Company (ordinary shares) provided that:

a. the maximum aggregate number of ordinary shares hereby 
authorised to be purchased is 13,338,457;

b. the minimum price (excluding expenses) which may be paid for an 
ordinary share is 10p;

c. the maximum price (excluding expenses) which may be paid for 
an ordinary share is not more than the higher of: 

i. an amount equal to 105% of the average of the middle market 
quotations for an ordinary share as derived from the London 
Stock Exchange Daily Official List for the five business days 
immediately preceding the day on which the purchase is 
made; and 

ii. an amount equal to the higher of the price of the last 
independent trade of an ordinary share and the highest 
current independent bid for an ordinary share on the trading 
venue where the purchase is carried out;

d. the authority hereby conferred shall expire at the conclusion of the 
next AGM of the Company after the passing of this resolution or, if 
earlier, on 25 August 2023; and

e. the Company may make a contract to purchase ordinary shares 
under the authority hereby conferred prior to the expiry of such 
authority which will or may be completed or executed wholly or 
partly after the expiry of such authority.

By order of the Board

AMY STANBRIDGE
COMPANY SECRETARY

13 April 2022

HENRY BOOT PLC
Registered Office:
Banner Cross Hall
Ecclesall Road South
Sheffield
United Kingdom
S11 9PD

Registered in England and Wales No. 160996

Notes
1. The holders of preference shares in the Company are not entitled 

to attend and vote at the AGM.

2. The right to vote at the meeting is determined by reference to the 
register of members. Only those ordinary shareholders registered 
in the register of members of the Company as at the close of 
business on 24 May 2022 (or, if the meeting is adjourned, at the 
close of business on the date which is two working days before 
the date of the adjourned meeting) shall be entitled to attend 
and vote at the meeting in respect of the number of ordinary 
shares registered in their name at that time. Changes to entries 
in the register of members after that time shall be disregarded in 
determining the rights of any person to attend or vote (and the 
number of votes they may cast) at the meeting. 

3. An ordinary shareholder is entitled to appoint any other person 
as his or her proxy to exercise all or any of his or her rights to 
attend and to speak and vote at the meeting. A proxy need not 
be a shareholder of the Company. An ordinary shareholder may 
appoint more than one proxy in relation to the meeting, provided 
that each proxy is appointed to exercise the rights attached to a 
different ordinary share or ordinary shares held by that ordinary 
shareholder. Failure to specify the number of ordinary shares each 
proxy appointment relates to or specifying a number which when 
taken together with the numbers of ordinary shares set out in the 
other proxy appointments is in excess of the number of ordinary 
shares held by the ordinary shareholder may result in the proxy 
appointment being invalid. 

4. APPOINTMENT OF PROXY BY JOINT HOLDERS: In the case of 
joint holders, where more than one of the joint holders purports 
to appoint a proxy, only the appointment submitted by the 
most senior holder will be accepted. Seniority is determined by 
the order in which the names of the joint holders appear in the 
Company’s register of members in respect of the joint holders (the 
first-named being the most senior).

5. A proxy may only be appointed in accordance with the procedures 
set out in notes 6 to 9 below and the notes to the form of 
proxy. The appointment of a proxy will not preclude an ordinary 
shareholder from attending and voting in person at the meeting. 

6. A form of proxy is enclosed with the notice issued to holders of 
ordinary shares. When appointing more than one proxy, complete 
a separate proxy form in relation to each appointment. Additional 
proxy forms may be obtained by contacting the Company’s 
registrar or the proxy form may be photocopied. State clearly on 
each proxy form the number of shares in relation to which the 
proxy is appointed. To be valid, a form of proxy must be received 
by post (during normal business hours only) at the offices of the 
Company’s registrars, Computershare Investor Services PLC, 
The Pavilions, Bridgwater Road, Bristol BS99 6ZY, no later 
than 12.30pm on 24 May 2022 (or, if the meeting is adjourned, 
48 hours (excluding any part of a day that is not a working day) 
before the time of any adjourned meeting). 

7. As an alternative to completing the hard copy form of proxy,  
an ordinary shareholder may appoint any person as his or  
her proxy electronically using the online service at  
www.investorcentre.co.uk/eproxy. For an electronic proxy 
appointment to be valid, the appointment must be received by 
Computershare Investor Services PLC no later than 12.30pm 
on 24 May 2022 (or, if the meeting is adjourned, no later than 
48 hours (excluding any part of a day that is not a working day) 
before the time of any adjourned meeting). 

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Henry Boot PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 205



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

8. Proxymity Voting – if you are an institutional investor you may 
also be able to appoint a proxy electronically via the Proxymity 
platform, a process which has been agreed by the Company 
and approved by the Company’s registrar. For further information 
regarding Proxymity, please go to proxymity.io. Your proxy must 
be lodged by 12.30pm on 24 May 2022 (or, if the meeting is 
adjourned, no later than 48 hours (excluding any part of a day that 
is not a working day) before the time of any adjourned meeting) 
in order to be considered valid. Before you can appoint a proxy 
via this process you will need to have agreed to Proxymity’s 
associated terms and conditions. It is important that you read 
these carefully as you will be bound by them and they will govern 
the electronic appointment of your proxy.

9. CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies for the 
AGM (or any adjournment of it) through the CREST electronic 
proxy appointment service may do so by using the procedures 
described in the CREST Manual, which is available at euroclear.
com. CREST personal members or other CREST sponsored 
members, and those CREST members who have appointed a 
voting service provider(s), should refer to their CREST sponsor or 
voting service provider(s), who will be able to take the appropriate 
action on their behalf.

In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the 
CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST message (a 
‘CREST Proxy Instruction’) must be properly authenticated in 
accordance with Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited’s specifications 
and must contain the information required for such instructions, 
as described in the CREST Manual. The message, regardless 
of whether it constitutes the appointment of a proxy or is an 
amendment to the instruction given to a previously appointed 
proxy, must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be 
received by Computershare Investor Services PLC (ID: 3RA50) 
no later than 12.30pm on 24 May 2022 (or, if the meeting is 
adjourned, 48 hours (excluding any part of a day that is not a 
working day) before the time of any adjourned meeting). For 
this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time (as 
determined by the timestamp applied to the message by the 
CREST Applications Host) from which Computershare Investor 
Services PLC is able to retrieve the message by enquiry to CREST 
in the manner prescribed by CREST. After this time, any change 
of instructions to proxies appointed through CREST should be 
communicated to the appointee through other means.

CREST members and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors 
or voting service providers should note that Euroclear UK & Ireland 
Limited does not make available special procedures in CREST for 
any particular messages. Normal system timings and limitations will 
therefore apply in relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions. 
It is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (or, 
if the CREST member is a CREST personal member or sponsored 
member or has appointed a voting service provider(s), to procure 
that his or her CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s) take(s)) 
such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message is 
transmitted by means of the CREST system by any particular 
time. In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, 
their CREST sponsors or voting service providers are referred, 
in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning 
practical limitations of the CREST system and timings.

The Company may treat a CREST Proxy Instruction as invalid 
in the circumstances set out in Regulation 35(5)(a) of the 
Uncertificated Securities Regulations 2001.

10. An ordinary shareholder which is a corporation may authorise 
one or more persons to act as its representative(s) at the 
meeting. Each such representative may exercise (on behalf of the 
corporation) the same powers as the corporation could exercise 
if it were an individual shareholder, provided that (where there is 
more than one representative and the vote is otherwise than on a 
show of hands) they do not do so in relation to the same shares. 

11. Where a copy of this notice is being received by a person who has 
been nominated to enjoy information rights under Section 146 of 
the Companies Act 2006 (Nominated Person):

a. the Nominated Person may have a right under an agreement 
between him/her and the shareholder by whom he/she 
was nominated to be appointed, or to have someone else 
appointed, as a proxy for the meeting; or

b. if the Nominated Person has no such right or does not wish 
to exercise such right, he/she may have a right under such 
an agreement to give instructions to the shareholder as to the 
exercise of voting rights.

The statement of the rights of ordinary shareholders in relation to 
the appointment of proxies in notes 5 to 9 above does not apply 
to a Nominated Person. The rights described in such notes can 
only be exercised by ordinary shareholders of the Company.

12. A shareholder or shareholders having a right to vote at the 
meeting and holding at least 5% of the total voting rights of the 
Company (see note 16 below), or at least 100 shareholders 
having a right to vote at the meeting and holding, on average, at 
least £100 of paid up share capital, may require the Company 
to publish on its website a statement setting out any matter that 
such shareholders propose to raise at the meeting relating to 
either the audit of the Company’s Financial Statements (including 
the Auditors’ Report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be 
laid before the meeting or any circumstances connected with 
auditors of the Company ceasing to hold office since the last 
AGM of the Company in accordance with Section 527 of the 
Companies Act 2006.

Any such request must:

a. identify the statement to which it relates, by either setting out 
the statement in full or, if supporting a statement requested by 
another shareholder, clearly identifying the statement that is 
being supported;

b. comply with the requirements set out in note 12 below; and

c. be received by the Company at least one week before the 
meeting.

Where the Company is required to publish such a statement on its 
website:

i. it may not require the shareholders making the request to pay 
any expenses incurred by the Company in complying with the 
request;

ii. it must forward the statement to the Company’s auditors no 
later than the time when it makes the statement available on 
the website; and

iii. the statement may be dealt with as part of the business of the 
meeting.
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13. Any request by a shareholder or shareholders to require the 
Company to publish audit concerns as set out in note 12:

a. may be made either:

i. in hard copy, by sending it to the Company Secretary, 
Henry Boot PLC, Banner Cross Hall, Ecclesall Road 
South, Sheffield S11 9PD; or

ii. in electronic form, by sending it by email to  
cosec-ir@henryboot.co.uk  
Please state ‘Henry Boot PLC: AGM’ in the subject  
line of the email;

b.  must state the full name(s) and address(es) of the 
shareholder(s); and

c. where the request is made in hard copy form, it must be 
signed by the shareholder(s).

14. Shareholders have the right to ask questions at the meeting 
relating to the business being dealt with at the meeting in 
accordance with Section 319A of the Companies Act 2006. The 
Company must answer any such question unless:

a. to do so would interfere unduly with the preparation for 
the meeting or would involve the disclosure of confidential 
information;

b. the answer has already been given on a website in the form of 
an answer to a question; or

c. it is undesirable in the interests of the Company or the good 
order of the meeting that the question be answered.

15. The information required by Section 311A of the Companies Act 
2006 to be published in advance of the meeting, which includes 
the matters set out in this notice and information relating to the 
voting rights of shareholders, is available at: henryboot.co.uk 

16. Except as expressly provided above, shareholders who wish to 
communicate with the Company in relation to the meeting should 
do so using the following means:

a. telephone 0114 255 5444; or

b. email cosec-ir@henryboot.co.uk

No other methods of communication will be accepted.

17. As at 08 April 2022 (being the last practicable date before 
publication of this notice), the Company’s issued ordinary share 
capital was 133,392,949 ordinary shares, carrying one vote each 
and representing the total number of voting rights in the Company.

18. The following documents will be available for inspection during 
normal business hours at the registered office of the Company 
from the date of this notice until the time of the meeting. They will 
also be available for inspection at the place of the meeting from at 
least 15 minutes before the meeting until it ends.

a. Copies of the service contracts of the executive directors.

b. Copies of the letters of appointment of the non-executive 
directors.

19. Biographies for each of the directors are shown on pages 76 to 
77 of the annual report for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

ADVISERS

LONDON STOCK EXCHANGE ANNOUNCEMENTS
Annual Results 2021:  
23 March 2022

Interim Results 2022:  
20 September 2022

Pre-close Trading Statement 2022:  
end January 2023

ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Annual Report and Financial Statements 2021  
(Available and online):  
by 22 April 2022

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
26 May 2022

DIVIDENDS PAID ON ORDINARY SHARES
2021Final dividend date (Subject to approval at AGM):  
01 June 2022

2022 Interim dividend date (Subject to approval):  
14 October 2022

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS AND STATUTORY AUDITORS
Ernst & Young LLP
1 Bridgewater Place
Water Lane
Leeds LS11 5QR

BANKERS
Barclays Bank PLC
1 St Paul’s Place
121 Norfolk Street
Sheffield S1 2JW

HSBC UK Bank Plc
City Point
29 Kings Street
Leeds LS1 2HL

National Westminster Bank PLC
2 Whitehall Quay
Leeds LS1 4HR

CORPORATE FINANCE
KPMG Corporate Finance 
1 Sovereign Square
Sovereign Street
Leeds LS1 4DA

FINANCIAL PR
FTI Consulting
200 Aldersgate
Aldersgate Street
London EC1A 4HD

REGISTRARS
Computershare Investor Services PLC
The Pavilions
Bridgwater Road
Bristol BS13 8AE

SOLICITORS – CORPORATE
DLA Piper UK LLP
1 St Paul’s Place
Sheffield S1 2JX

SOLICITORS – OPERATIONAL
Irwin Mitchell LLP
Riverside East House
2 Millsands
Sheffield S3 8DT

STOCKBROKERS
Numis Securities Limited
Joint Corporate Broker
The London Stock Exchange Building
10 Paternoster Square
London EC4M 7LT 

Peel Hunt LLP
Joint Corporate Broker
Moor House 
120 London Wall 
EC2Y 5ET
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GROUP CONTACT INFORMATION

LAND PROMOTION
Hallam Land Management Limited
Registered office and Head office
Banner Cross Hall, Ecclesall Road South, Sheffield S11 9PD

t: 0114 255 5444 
e: info@hallamland.co.uk  
w: hallamland.co.uk 

Regional offices 
Bristol, Glasgow, Leeds, London and Northampton

PROPERTY INVESTMENT AND DEVELOPMENT
Henry Boot Developments Limited
Registered office and Head office 
Banner Cross Hall, Ecclesall Road South, Sheffield S11 9PD

t: 0114 350 4477 
e: hello@hbd.co.uk  
w: hbd.co.uk 

Regional offices  
Birmingham, Bristol, Glasgow, Leeds, London and Manchester

Stonebridge Homes Limited
Registered office 
Banner Cross Hall, Ecclesall Road South, Sheffield S11 9PD

Head office 
1 Featherbank Court, Horsforth, Leeds LS18 4QF

t: 0113 357 1100 
e:  sales@stonebridgehomes.co.uk
w:  stonebridgehomes.co.uk

CONSTRUCTION 
Henry Boot Construction Limited
Registered office 
Banner Cross Hall, Ecclesall Road South, Sheffield S11 9PD

Head office 
Callywhite Lane, Dronfield, Derbyshire S18 2XN

t: 01246 410111 
e: hbc@henryboot.co.uk 
w: henrybootconstruction.co.uk

Banner Plant Limited
Registered office 
Banner Cross Hall, Ecclesall Road South, Sheffield S11 9PD

Head office 
Callywhite Lane, Dronfield, Derbyshire, S18 2XS

t: 01246 299400 
e: dronfield@bannerplant.co.uk 
w: bannerplant.co.uk

Hire centres 
Chesterfield, Derby, Dronfield, Leicester, Leeds, Rotherham  
and Wakefield

Road Link (A69) Limited
Registered office and Head office 
Stocksfield Hall, Stocksfield, Northumberland NE43 7TN

t: 01661 842842 
e: enquiries@roadlinka69.co.uk
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GLOSSARY

We have used some terms in this report to explain how we run our business that might be unfamiliar to you. The following list gives a definition for 
some of the more frequently used terms:

COMMERCIAL PROPERTY
This refers to buildings or land intended to 
generate a profit, either from capital gain 
or rental income, such as office building, 
industrial property, retail stores, etc.

DISCLOSURE AND  
TRANSPARENCY RULES (DTR)
Issued by the United Kingdom Listing 
Authority.

DIVIDEND
A distribution of a portion of a company’s 
earnings, decided by the board of directors, to 
a class of its shareholders.

EARNINGS PER SHARE (EPS)
Profit for the period attributable to equity 
shareholders divided by the average number 
of shares in issue during the period.

ESG
Environmental, Social and Governance

GEARING
Net debt expressed as a percentage of equity 
shareholders’ funds.

IAS
International Accounting Standard.

IASB
International Accounting Standards Board.

IFRS
International Financial Reporting Standard as 
adopted by the European Union.

INVENTORY VALUE
The determination of the cost of unsold 
inventory at the end of the accounting period.

IOSH
Institution of Occupational Safety and Health.

LIBOR
The London Interbank Offered Rate is a daily 
reference rate based on the interest rates at 
which banks borrow unsecured funds from 
other banks in the London wholesale money 
market (or interbank market).

NET ASSET VALUE PER SHARE (NAV)
Equity shareholders’ funds divided by the 
number of shares in issue at the balance 
sheet date.

OPERATING PROFIT
Profit earned from a company’s core 
activities.

OPTION AGREEMENT
A legal agreement between a landowner 
and another party for the right to buy land 
within a set time scale at the conclusion of a 
satisfactory planning permission.

ORDINARY SHARE
Any shares that are not preferred shares and 
do not have any predetermined dividend 
amounts. An ordinary share represents 
equity ownership in a company and 
entitles the owner to a vote in matters put 
before shareholders in proportion to their 
percentage ownership in the company.

PFI CONTRACT
A Private Finance Initiative contract is a 
contract between a public body and a private 
company and involves the private sector 
making capital investment in the assets 
required to deliver improved services.  
They are typified by long contract lengths, 
often 30 years or more.

PLANNING PROMOTION AGREEMENT 
(PPA)
A legal agreement between a landowner 
and another party for a set time scale and 
financial consideration to promote land 
through the UK planning system.

PRE-LET
A lease signed with a tenant prior to 
completion of a development.

RENEWABLE ENERGY
Energy which comes from natural resources, 
such as sunlight, wind, rain, tides, waves 
and geothermal heat, which are naturally 
replenished.

RETAIL PRICE INDEX (RPI)/CONSUMER 
PRICE INDEX (CPI)
Monthly inflation indicators based on different 
‘baskets’ of products issued by the Office of 
National Statistics.

RETURN ON AVERAGE CAPITAL 
EMPLOYED (ROCE)
A financial ratio that measures a company’s 
profitability and the efficiency with which its 
capital is employed.

S106
Section 106 agreements (S106) are private 
agreements made between local authorities 
and developers. They can be attached to 
a planning permission to make acceptable 
development which would otherwise be 
unacceptable in planning terms.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY
A company whose voting stock is more than 
50% controlled by another company, usually 
referred to as the parent company or holding 
company.

A subsidiary is a company that is partly or 
completely owned by another company that 
holds a controlling interest in the subsidiary 
company.

TCFD 
Task Force on Climate-related Financial 
Disclosures’ (https://www.fsb-tcfd.org/)

TOTAL SHAREHOLDER RETURN (TSR)
Dividends and capital growth in the share 
price, expressed as a percentage of the share 
price at the beginning of the year.

TRADING PROFIT
The difference between an organisation’s 
sales revenue and the cost of goods sold.

UK PLANNING SYSTEM
This system consists of the process of 
managing the development of land and 
buildings. The purposes of this process are to 
save what is best of our heritage and improve 
the infrastructure upon which we depend for a 
civilised existence.
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